
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Resources Department 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee B are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Islington Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 27 February 2024 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries to : Emma Taylor 
Tel : 020 7527 3486 
E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 
Despatched : 19 February 2024 
 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Bashir Ibrahim (Chair) 
Councillor Nick Wayne (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ilkay Cinko-Oner 
 

All other members of the Licensing 
committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 
 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
  
A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 
 
1.  Introductions and procedure 

 
 

 
2.  Apologies for absence 

 
 

 
3.  Declarations of substitute members 

 
 

 
4.  Declarations of interest 

 
 

 
5.  Order of Business 

 
 

 
6.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 

 
1 - 6 

 
B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 
 
1.  Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5RN - New Premise Licence 

 
7 - 82 

 
2.  Hotel Indigo, 2 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5PQ - New Premise 

Licence 
 

83 - 
130 

 
3.  Rush Cocktails, Basement, 100 Old Street, London, EC1V 9AY 

 
131 - 
162  

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

Page 
 
D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

Page 
 
E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

Page 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 
detailed below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present 
a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 
representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  
  
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 
any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 
Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 
representations     given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  

12)  Responsible Authorities 2 
13)  Interested parties mins 
14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee B held at Islington Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  19 December 2023 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Ibrahim (Chair), Wayne (Vice-Chair) and Cinko-
Oner 

 
 

Councillor Bashir Ibrahim in the Chair 
 

 
88 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 

The Chair introduced all parties and outlined the procedure.  
 

89 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
None. 
 

90 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
None. 
 

91 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 

92 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of Business was as per the Agenda.  
 

93 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as a correct record and the Chair be 
authorised to sign them. 
 

94 EDENS CHICKEN COTTAGE, 264 SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, N4 2HY - NEW 
PREMISE LICENCE (Item B1) 
The Licensing Officer updated the Sub Committee that the hours being sought had 
been amended during the consultation period and these were detailed in the 
Agenda Pack. Representations had been received from the Local Authority and 
Community Safety.  
 
The Local Authority explained that the hours sought were still outside of framework 
hours and this would be a late-night premises that could attract intoxicated patrons 
from the surrounding pubs and bars. There had also been previous issues with 
delivery drivers and their behaviour in this area. There needed to be a process in 
place to control delivery drivers but there was not much evidence of this in the 
operation schedule. In response to questions from the Sub Committee the Local 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

2 
 

Authority explained that any conditions applied would only be enforceable from 
11pm.  
 
Community Safety explained that there was a lot of noise generated by late night 
venues and this was a residential area. There were also many Anti-Social Behaviour 
(ASB) issues associated with late night venues such as littering, toileting, idling, 
illegal parking. Their main concern was surrounding the management of large 
groups that could gather and the ASB associated with large numbers of delivery 
drivers. To mitigate these concerns, community safety suggested identifying parking 
spaces and trained security in the premises to moderate any issues that may occur 
from drunk patrons and large groups. In response to questions, they explained that 
non-motorised vehicles help with noise concerns and illegal parking issues. They 
further explained that other premises in the area such as McDonalds had complied 
well with these issues and done a lot of work to reduce the impact to residents, 
there therefore needed to be a clear expectation of what is wanted from the owners.  
 
The applicant’s representative explained that they had initially sought hours up to 
5am but due to concerns from responsible authorities and residents this was 
reduced. They had already agreed conditions with the police on non-motorised 
vehicles. The applicant’s representative explained the manager was very 
experienced, managing a premises in Brent that was open until 5am, this was a 
comprehensive operation with well trained staff. They further explained they have a 
good relationship with the delivery drivers and are able to manage them well, so 
they do not cause any issues. In response to questions the applicant and their 
representative expressed willingness to restrict deliveries after 11 pm to alleviate 
concerns about late-night operations. The area had not experienced any problems 
with anti-social behaviour when closing at 11pm. Regarding neighbouring 
businesses, the speaker was not familiar with activities outside their own and 
mentioned a fried chicken shop open until 5am nearby, with uncertainty about its 
policies. Staffing considerations always included a minimum of three fully trained 
staff, undergoing training every six months. If the license was granted, similar 
training would be provided to staff at the Islington premises for late-night operations. 
The business had been operational for seven years, closing at 11 pm with no 
issues. Although the manager split time between Brent and Islington, there was an 
intention to bring trained senior staff to the Islington location. 
 
In summing up the Local Authority and Community Safety still had concerns that 
there would have been an increase in anti-social behaviour and concerns that the 
managing of people was not robust enough.  
 
RESOLVED: 

The Sub-Committee has decided to grant the application for a new premises licence to 
EDENS CHICKEN COTTAGE, 264 SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, N4 2HY 
1) The provision of Late-Night Refreshment from Sunday to Thursdays 23:00 to 00:00 and 

Friday to Saturdays, from 23:00 to 01:00.  
2) Premises opening hours, Sundays to Thursdays from 10:00 to 00:00 and on Fridays to 

Saturdays from 10:00 to 01:00.  
Conditions detailed on pages 42 to 44 of the agenda shall be applied to the licence with the 
following amendments:- 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

3 
 

- Removal conditions 3 and 4 under noise service conditions.  
- No deliveries beyond 23:00 Mondays to Sundays.  

 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises 
fall within the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  Licensing 
policy 3 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation 
of premises licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will 
normally be refused following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant 
can demonstrate in the operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
One local resident objection had been received and an objection by a Ward 
Councillor but they did not attend. Representations had been made by the Licensing 
Authority and Community Safety. Conditions had been agreed with the noise team 
and the Police.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were not within the framework 
hours specified in licensing policy 6, although the applicants representative 
confirmed that the hours had been amended from the original application in 
accordance with planning permission.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the Licensing Authority and community 
safety. There were significant problems in this location with Anti-Social Behaviour 
and community safety issues, especially with littering, illegal parking, toileting, 
intimidating behaviour resulting from large groups loitering (particularly delivery 
drivers) and noise from individuals impacting local residents. The situation needed 
close supervision by management, or even SIA security and a dispersal policy.  
 
In response to questions the manager and the representative said they had no 
problems at the shop and were unaware of any Anti-Social Behaviour issues in the 
area beyond 11pm as this is when the shop closed. The business operated two fast-
food outlets, one in Seven Sisters Road and the other in Brent. The manager split 
her time between the two premises, but dedicated senior staff would be brought in. 
The manager was experienced in agreeing with two platforms about delivery drivers, 
and certain delivery drivers had been banned on occasion from the premises in 
Brent. However, the representative confirmed that because of the nature of the 
trade of the Seven Sisters Road premises he would be happy not to have deliveries 
after 11pm although they would like them. 
 
Training for staff was planned but had not yet been implemented as the license had 
not yet been granted.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered Licensing Policy 6 paragraph 80. The hours 
requested were outside of framework policy. ‘Applicants for premises licences falling 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

4 
 

outside ‘those’ hours are expected to fully explain in their operating schedule the 
arrangements that they will put in place, to ensure that the premises will not add to 
the impact late-night premises may have on the local community’. It was not 
satisfied that the arrangements devised by the applicant were sufficiently robust, 
particularly in relation to training of staff. However, it noted the premises had been 
operating for 7 years up to 11pm with no complaint.  
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence for late-night 
refreshment for the hours specified in licensing policy 6 was proportionate and 
appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives with the conditions agreed.    
 

95 THE KING’S HEAD THEATRE, 116P UPPER STREET, N1 1AP (Item B2) 
The Licensing officer explained the applicant had submitted a further document that 
had been circulated to all parties. They explained there were no local residents 
present to make verbal representations. Conditions had been agreed with the Police 
and Noise team.  
 
The applicant explained there had been a long happy 50-year relationship. The 
theatre had developed local actors and producers and provided a good 
entertainment space for residents. The theatre productions will carry on in the 
purpose-built space to lead to more successful and professional productions. The 
building did have a slightly unusual layout with access gained via upper street but all 
licensable activities will take place underground in the basement area. All the bars 
were temporary and moveable structures and there would be no fixed bar. Most 
shows will be finished by 10pm and patrons are not anticipated to congregate 
afterwards. There were occasional later shows planned such as comedy and 
cabaret. The applicant understood there were people living above and their 
concerns but they did not expect large volumes of people to be leaving late into the 
night.  
 
In response to questions the applicant explained that the maximum capacity of the 
venue was 200 seats, with an additional flexible space for around 50 individuals. 
Full capacity was not expected regularly, reaching the maximum only during theatre 
performances. Anticipated audience numbers varied depending on the show, with 
an expectation of a gradual increase in engagement over time. Ticket presales 
allowed for advance knowledge of attendance, and the venue could be responsive 
to these numbers with an agreed condition with the police mandated maintaining 
adequate staff levels. Regarding dispersal, there was a policy in place, with an 
expectation that people were unlikely to linger after theatre performances. A side 
exit would be used if two shows were scheduled together and a quick dispersal was 
desired. The primary intention for the venue was not as a bar but as a theatre that 
provided drinks, with the expectation that individuals not connected to productions 
were unlikely to frequent the space regularly. It was also noted that the move to the 
current premises had been envisioned for at least 10 years.  
 
RESOLVED: 

The Sub-Committee has decided to grant the application for a new premises licence to THE 
KING’S HEAD THEATRE, 116P UPPER STREET, LONDON N1 1AP 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

5 
 

1) The sale by retail of alcohol, on & off supplies, Mondays to Sundays from 10:00 
until 00:00; 

2) The performance of plays, the performance of live music, the playing of recorded 
music and the performance of dance, Mondays to Sundays from 10:00 until 
00:00; 

3) The provision of late-night refreshment, Mondays to Sundays from 23:00 until 
00:00; and 

4) The premises to be open to the public, Mondays to Sundays from 08:00 until 
00:30 the following day. 

Conditions detailed on pages 99 to 101 of the agenda shall be applied to the licence.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the 
material. The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and 
the Council’s Licensing Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises 
fall within Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 3 
creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for the grant or variation of 
premises licences which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will 
normally be refused following the receipt of representations, unless the applicant 
can demonstrate in the operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
 
Seven local resident objections had been received but the residents did not attend. 
There had been no representations made by the responsible authorities, but 
conditions had been agreed with the police and noise team. 
The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were not within the framework 
hours specified in licensing policy 6. 
 
The applicant explained this was a purpose built space in the Islington square 
development and it had always been envisaged that this space would be used for 
the theatre. Although licensing hours had been requested until 00:00 this was to 
accommodate patrons attending comedy and cabaret shows in the flexible space 
next to the theatre. 50 people could attend this area and shows would begin at 
10pm but maybe only at weekends. The theatre could accommodate up to 200 
patrons and shows would generally end at 10pm. There was a dispersal policy and 
the bar would be available to theatre goers and associates both before, after and 
during intervals of shows. It was unlikely to attract general members of the public 
because of its situation inside the premises.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered licensing policy 11, which states ‘the licensing 
authority wishes to encourage more cultural spaces to be opened in the borough so 
that the cultural offer is widely available and accessible to residents and visitors.’  
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the premises licence with the robust 
conditions agreed would be unlikely to add to existing cumulative impact, and was 
proportionate and appropriate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 December 2023 
 

6 
 

 
96 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Sub-Committee resolved to exclude the press and public, as the discussion of 
the following item would likely involve the disclosure of Exempt Information under 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 

97 REVIEW OF PERSONAL LICENCE  
 
This minute is exempt from publication under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Appendix 5 of the Council’s Constitution. The reason for 
exemption is Category 1: Information relating to any individual.  
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 6



    

 

 

 
Public Protection/Licensing 
222 Upper Street, London 

N1 1XR 

Report of: Director of Community Safety, Resilience and Community  

Meeting of: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Date:  27/02/2024 

Ward(s): Bunhill 

 

Subject: 

PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 

Re: Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London EC1M 
5RN 
1. Synopsis  
1.1. This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2. The new application is to allow: 

• The On and Off Sales of Alcohol, from 09:00 until 02:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday and from 09:00 until 04:00 Thursday to Saturday. 

• Live Music, amplified and unamplified, from 09:00 until 02:00 Sunday to 
Wednesday and from 09:00 until 04:00 Thursday to Saturday. 

• Recorded Music, amplified music provided by DJ’s, from 09:00 until 02:00 
Sunday to Wednesday and from 09:00 until 04:00 Thursday to Saturday. 

• Late Night Refreshment, hot food throughout the hours of operation, from 
23:00 until 02:00 Sunday to Wednesday and from 23:00 until 04:00 
Thursday to Saturday. 

• Opening hours, 09:00 until 02:30 Sunday to Wednesday and from 09:00 
until 04:30 Thursday to Saturday. 

Page 7

Agenda Item B1



1.3. Relevant Representations: 

Licensing Authority Yes – Suggested Recommendations 

Metropolitan Police 
Yes – Suggested Recommendations and 
conditions, not accepted at the time of 
writing the report 

Noise Yes – Suggested Conditions, not accepted 
at the time of writing the report 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade 

Yes – Suggested Fire Safety Work 
Recommendations and a reduction of 
patron numbers until this work is 
completed and signed off by the London 
Fire Brigade.  

Planning Yes 

Local residents Yes: Ten resident representations 

Other bodies No:  
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

Page 8



i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being a bar, supplying music, alcohol and 
food.  
 

3.2 There is an existing licence in place at this premises, which has been in place since at 
least 2005 and has been held by many premises licence holders. The applicant for this 
new application, SEO Joint Ltd, transferred onto the existing licence in October 2023.  

 
3.3 Since SEO Joint Ltd took possession of the existing licence, there have been a large 

number of calls to Islington’s Anti-Social Behaviour Team, from residents local to the 
premises.  Appendix 4 sets out the complaints from 1st November until the time of 
writing the report.  

 
3.4 The premises have been operating until 04:00 under Temporary Event Notices, given 

for the following dates; 
• 1st and 2nd November 2023 
• 2nd and 3rd December 2023 
• 9th and 10th December 2023 
• 16th and 17th December 2023 
• 23rd and 24th December 2023 
• 30th and 31st December 2023 
• 1st January 2024 
• 20th and 21st January 2024 
• 28th and 29th January 2024 
• 17th and 18th February 2024 
 

3.5 The application received ten letters of representation from local residents. Additionally, 
representation have been received from the Licensing Authority, Islington’s Noise and 
Planning Service, the Licensing Police and the London Fire Brigade.  The Police and 
Noise Team suggested a number of conditions they would like to see placed on any 
premises licence granted.  The Licensing Authority representation, listed a number of 
considerations Members should have when granting the application.  The London Fire 
Brigade have given the premises a schedule of works, they need to carry out at the 
premises, and have capped the numbers of patrons at the premises, until such time as 
the works have been completed and cleared.  

 
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

Page 9



4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£315.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1  The Planning & Development section have confirm the following;  

• The property is not a statutorily listed building but it is located within the Clerkenwell 
Green Conservation Area (CA1). 
 

• The ground floor and basement unit has a long established use as a coffee shop 
which is Class E.   

 
• The proposed use as a bar would require a change of use application, there is no 

record of a corresponding application for this proposed change of use.  Should the 
bar open without planning permission it would be a breach of planning control. 

 
Page 10



• The proposed alterations noted in the license application would be considered a 
breach of planning control, as planning permission has not been sought nor granted. 

 
• Planning objects to this license application, as the proposed change of use would 

potentially cause additional, noise, nuisance and anti-social behaviour that would be 
detrimental to neighbouring residential amenity and thus fail the licensing objective 
for the prevention of public nuisance. 

 
• There are currently no open enforcement cases in relation to this address.  

 
 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Application form; 
Appendix 2: Existing Premises Licence; 
Appendix 3: Representations; 
Appendix 4: Noise Complaints received from 1st November until 19th February; 
Appendix 5: Suggested conditions and map of premises location. 
 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 11

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Proposed condi�ons – Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road EC1M 

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of a Metropolitan Police. All public areas including all entry and exit points will
be covered enabling frontal iden�fica�on of every person entering in any light condi�on. The
CCTV system shall con�nually record whilst the premises is open for licensable ac�vi�es and
during all �mes when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and �me stamping. Recordings shall be made available
upon the request of the Police or other authorised officer.

2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the opera�on of the CCTV system
shall be on the premises at all �mes when the premises is open to the public. This staff
member shall be able to show Police or any other authorised officer recent data or footage
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

3. The premises licence holder will ensure that a personal licence holder will be on duty
whenever the venue is open and opera�ng past 9pm on Friday and Saturday nights.

4. 4 SIA door staff will be employed at the premises on a Friday and Saturday from 9pm
(including 1 female SIA if possible) and will remain at the premises un�l 30 minutes a�er
closing �me.

5. All door supervisors shall enter their full details in the premises daily register at the
commencement of their work, including their name, �me on duty, �me off duty and a
method of contact.

6. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised
officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejec�ons of patrons
(c) any complaints received
(d) any incidents of disorder
(e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

7. Where the sale or supply of alcohol is taking place employees of the premises must request
sight of evidence of the age of any person appearing to be under 25 years of age (Challenge
25). Such evidence be in the form of a photo ID such as a driving licence or passport or PASS
card.

8. The premises will operate a zero-tolerance policy towards drugs and drug use and will
comply with any drugs or weapons policies set by the Police or local authority.

Page 28



9. The premises will display prominent signage by every entrance and exit
explaining/reques�ng:

(a) Customers to leave the premises quietly and respect local
residents.

(b) CCTV in opera�on
(c) Drugs policy
(d) Weapons policy

10. On a yearly basis all staff shall be given refresher training on the legisla�on rela�ng to sales
of alcohol to underage persons, drunken persons and how to deal with people incapacitated
by drink or drugs. Such training shall include first aid and any welfare training such as WAVE
(or as amended). Records of the training to be kept at the venue and made available to
police or authorised officer upon request. Any new staff will be trained on appointment.

11. Regular toilet checks will take place and be recorded no�ng the �me of the visit and any
issues found.

12. Any off sales of alcohol shall be in a sealed container. Customers will not be allowed to leave
with any open drink’s container including those leaving the premises to smoke and return.

13. In addi�on to no�ces asking customers to leave quietly and respect the neighbourhood the
premises will devise and implement a dispersal policy which will be retained on the premises
for inspec�on by Police or other authorised officer.

14. The smoking area will be to the front of the premises. From 2100 hrs this area will be
controlled by barrier and monitored by SIA and CCTV. The area will be limited to 10 people
a�er 2200hrs and those customers will be searched on re-entry.

15. The premises will ensure that any queue is managed, that there are no obstruc�ons of the
highway or footpath and that customers are queuing in an orderly manner.

16. The premises will have a noise limi�ng device set so as any noise will not cause a nuisance to
the nearest noise sensi�ve premises.

17. Whenever the venue has any form of regulated entertainment all windows and doors shall
remain closed.

18. The premises will display a dedicated phone number to the front of the premises of the DPS
for use by any person wishing to make a complaint during the opera�onal hours of the
licence.

19. The duty manager will ensure the front of the premises is swept and/or washed with any
liter collected and disposed of in accordance with approved waste arrangements.

Page 29



20. Refuse, including botles, shall not be taken outside the premises between the hours of 2300 
and 0700. 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Appendix 2

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Rep 1 

Sent: Friday, January 12, 2024 3:22 PM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Cc: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objec�on to licensing applica�on: 27 Clerkenwell Road 

[External] 

To the Licensing Support Team, 

My wife and I own  at  which is situated almost directly  27 
Clerkenwell Road.  

We wish to record our objec�ons please, in strenuous terms, to the applica�on recently made by 
SEO Joint Ltd in rela�on to the bar/club named Drip at the above address. The applicant is seeking a 
licence to remain open and to sell alcohol every single night of the week un�l the early hours of the 
morning.  

We are deeply opposed to this applica�on because of the very significant impact we believe gran�ng 
that licence would have on the quality of the life of all of the residents in our building and others 
nearby. The venue has to date already caused significant noise and disrup�on to local residents as a 
result of the unsociable behaviour of certain of its customers when coming and going and, in 
par�cular, when standing outside for longer periods in the early hours to smoke.  

I believe you will already have been made aware of a significant disturbance caused on the night of 
10/11 December, in which revelry and confronta�ons seem to have spilled into Clerkenwell Road 
un�l well a�er 3am.  This venue is already causing an intolerable intrusion into the lives of those 
residents of Islington who live nearby, and we feel certain that by extending the hours during which 
this club could remain open to sell alcohol — and one can fairly presume that its objec�ve will be to 
maximise its sales of alcohol during that period because that is its core business — those issues will 
only increase, and at even more unsociable �mes.  

May we therefore please ask you to reject this licensing applica�on. If this already inconsiderate 
venue operator cannot adequately control or influence the behaviour of its customers during its 
exis�ng licensed hours, it should not be permited to further degrade the local area by doing so at 
ever later hours. Please will you protect the interests of the Islington residents who live nearby and 
who are surely en�tled to some peaceful enjoyment of their surroundings.  

I have copied Carol Jones in your licensing team who we understand has helped to deal with the 
complaints that have been submited to date about Drip and who is consequently well-versed with 
the issues experienced by local residents.  

Kind regards, 

Appendix 3

Page 39



Rep 2 

From:   
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 9:33 AM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objec�on to extension of licensing hours for Drip Nightclub, 27 Clerkenwell road, EC1M 5RN 

[External]  

Dear Licensing Support Team,  

I am wri�ng to express my strong objec�on to the proposed extension for even later hours for Drip 
nightclub. The noise and vibra�ons generated from the club's soundsystem comes up through our 
building and affects sleep. There does not seem to be soundproofing as we were also affected by the 
refurbishment works of the venue which were loud and regularly went outside of hours. We are also 
woken by doors slamming throughout the night when the club is opera�ng. This causes further noise 
and vibra�ons which makes for a very unsetling experience. The venue did have soundproofing and 
a noise limi�ng device installed when it was Dust many years ago but this has been removed and 
never reinstalled when converted back from restaurant to nightclub. 

The residents are also concerned by the use of pyrotechnics and other flammable materials 
underneath our building. This is a conserva�on area with old buildings including the Museum of St 
John and it only adds to our anxiety. 

A window on the shop front has already been broken.  

Previous noise complaints have already and again last night. It is an issue when the club is open. An 
extension would only further exacerbate the disturbance, causing significant annoyance to residents. 
We know that this business has  lost their licence for a previous business in Greenwich for these very 
same complaints, loud music, going outside of licenced hours etc and we feel that there is clearly the 
same patern emerging in their short �me in 27 Clerkenwell Road. They do not stay within the 
parameters of their licence. 

I urge you to priori�ze the well-being of the residents and reject this applica�on. 

Kind regards, 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Rep 3 

From:   
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:48 PM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Cc: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objec�on to Drip London, 27 Clerkenwell Road EC1M 5RN 

 

Page 40



 

[External]  

Objection to Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London EC1M 5RN 
  
I'm the property owner of  (which is currently 
rented).  I’m objecting to the hours requested by Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road as they are 
unreasonable because of noise that will be created by comings and goings of 
customers.  
  
A club retailing alcohol until 2 am and 4am is not appropriate at that location which is 
residential and in very close proximity to my flat.  
  
The area is surrounded by residents who already and will find noise and disturbance 
intolerable.   
  
Cars already have been seen on both sides of Clerkenwell road when picking up and 
dropping down and that can be dangerous as one side is double yellow lined and the 
other is single.  
  
Please take my views into consideration when reviewing their licence. If you need to 
contact me for further information or discussion then please do not hesitate.  
  
Kind regards   
  

  
 

Rep 4 

From:   
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 7:15 PM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Cc: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Drip , 27 Clerkenwell Road , London EC1M 5RN ( " Drip " ) / Reference WK / 230040256 

[External]  

Dear Licensing Service,  

Drip , 27 Clerkenwell Road , London EC1M 5RN ( " Drip ") 

Reference : WK / 230040256 

I am an occupier of  within 50 metres of Drip. 

My name is . 

This email contains my representa�ons against the grant of any license to Drip. 

My representa�ons relate to preven�on of public nuisance and for public safety. 

As regards PUBLIC NUISANCE, I have been woken up and unable to return to sleep due to an uproar 
outside Drip at 04.02 11 December 2023 and again at 03.59 and 04,00 16 January 2024. There have 
been more than a few occasions when this has happened to me since December 2023 but I men�on 

Page 41



these two occasions as examples because I can atach photographs taken at the above �mes (see 
below). One photograph is of Night Safe Islington Patrol Service on the 11 December 2023 occasion 
where there was a considerable number of people, cars and shou�ng needing the presence of 
Islington Patrol Service. The remaining two photographs are of the 16 January occasion where there 
are numerous cars and there were people shou�ng and cars hoo�ng. It is unacceptable that I, as a 
long term resident of the immediate area, am unable to sleep. This is an�-social behaviour and it is 
wrong to license such an�-social ac�vi�es. 

On all these occasions when I am woken up and unable to return to sleep, I am concerned for PUBLIC 
SAFETY. The nature of the noise makes me concerned that someone is being atacked or hurt. It is 
very disturbing. 

Overall, it is wrong to license an�-social behaviour and events which lead members of the public to 
be concerned for public safety. The very presence of Islington Patrol Service on 11 December 2023 
makes clear the unpleasant level of such ac�vity. 

I would be grateful for acknowledgement of safe receipt. 

Best wishes, 

Rep 5 

From: 
Sent: 05 January 2024 13:30 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: SEO Joint Ltd / Drip Nightclub 

[External] 

Islington Licensing Support Team 

Subject: Strong Objec�on to Drip Nightclub's Applica�on for Extended Opening Hours 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I am wri�ng to vehemently object to the applica�on made by Drip Nightclub to extend their opening 
hours. It has come to my aten�on that the nightclub is already in breach of their current license due 
to consistent noise disturbances, and therefore, I believe their license should be withdrawn rather 
than extended. 

As a resident of the Islington community, I have been subjected to the excessive noise generated by 
Drip Nightclub during their exis�ng opera�ng hours. This disturbance has significantly impacted the 
quality of life for myself and my fellow residents. The proposed extension to serve alcohol un�l 4 am 
and remain open un�l 4.30 am will only exacerbate the exis�ng noise problems, causing further 
detriment to our wellbeing, not to men�on an�-social behaviour and traffic issues. 

Drip Nightclub has consistently failed to adhere to the noise regula�ons set forth in their current 
license. The disturbance reaches intolerable levels, infiltra�ng our homes and making it impossible to 
enjoy a peaceful night's sleep. This persistent disrup�on nega�vely affects our physical and mental 
health, as well as our ability to carry out our daily ac�vi�es effec�vely. 

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Nightclub. It is fundamental that our local council takes into account the well-being and safety of its 
residents when considering any licensing applica�ons. 
 
Moreover, extending the opening hours of Drip Nightclub can poten�ally lead to an increase in an�-
social behavior, the presence of drunk and disorderly individuals, as well as heightened risks to public 
safety during the late hours of the night. The safety of residents and visitors to the area should be of 
utmost priority in deciding whether to grant such an extension. As it is they recently have had a 
smashed window and there has been broken glass and botles on the streets. They are also already 
adver�sing on their instagram opera�ng past their current licensing �mes, which is demonstra�ve of 
their disregard for the council and disrespect for their neighbours. 
 
I kindly request that the Islington Licensing Support Team carefully consider the impact of Drip 
Nightclub's ac�vi�es on our community and take the necessary steps to address the noise 
disturbances caused by the establishment. In light of their current breaches of the licensing 
condi�ons, I strongly believe that their applica�on for extended opening hours should be rejected, 
and their exis�ng license should be revoked. 
 
Thank you for your aten�on to this mater. I trust that you will priori�ze the well-being and peace of 
mind of the residents when making your decision. If there are any hearings or opportuni�es for 
public input on this mater, I would greatly appreciate being no�fied so that I can voice my objec�ons 
in person. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
 
Rep 8 
 
From:   
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 12:00 AM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licensing Act 2003 - New Premises licence applica�on Drip London basement to First floor 
27 Clerkenwell Road London - 
 
1st Feb 2024 
 

 
 

 
 
To whom it may concern in the Licensing Service 
 
Thank you for making me aware as the owner since 1999 that a new live and recorded music Hip Hop 
themed night club called Drip London has applied for a major extension to the opera�ng hours and 
licensed ac�vi�es for this premises.I am  the property owner since 1999 and registered council tax 
payer for the address stated above at  which has a direct  between the 
master bedroom of my residen�al home and the Drip London  venue. I wish to make the licensing 
service to consider my comments below when considering this new licence applica�on . These 
comments relate to the following licensing objec�ves : 
- the preven�on of crime and disorder 

Page 46



- the preven�on of public nuisance

I wish to make the licensing service aware of the following 
- during the period in the 4th quarter of 2023 when the 27 Clerkenwell address was being
refurbished for the venues previous use by the new leaseholder Owen Igbinovia and owner and
Licence holder of the Drip London night club there were mul�ple breathes to the Islington building
site working hours and very loud noise from wall drilling which disrupted our evenings in

 and other residen�al proper�es nearby. Noise complaints were filed and the noise 
inves�ga�on officers were called out a number of �mes to inves�gate and stop the out of hours 
building work 
- since the night club started business there have been mul�ple �mes were they have not controlled
the volume within the levels of their licence condi�ons and have had noise complaints filed by myself
and others which have resulted in more visits by the noise inves�ga�on officers . The venue did not
install the required sound proofing or noise limi�ng device required by their current licence to
control noise levels.
-the venue via their social media and paper flyers is already adver�sing opera�ng hours beyond their
licence closing �me of 0200 and loud music has been witnessed from the venue at least one hour
beyond this �me
- the licence holder has a long history within the royal borough of Greenwich for entertainment and
sale of alcohol licence infringements for his Angle 90 night club which resulted in the withdrawal of
his licence and mul�ple incidents linked to the venue  requiring a police inves�ga�on .

It would not be in the public and local residents interests to grant this licence change when the 
current licence condi�ons are not being adhered to in the first place and should be under review 

Best Regards 

Rep 9 

From: 
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 11:59 PM 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objec�on to License Extension for Drip London, Clerkenwell Road, EC1M 5RN 

Dear Licensing team 

I am writing to express my concerns regarding the proposed license extension for Drip 
London, which  with our building at .   

I would like to point that I understand the challenge of opening a new venue and getting to 
grips with the acoustics of the space and the sound projection to minimise impact on the 
neighbours.  

It is with this in mind that I must express my significant concern regarding the ongoing noise 
issues emanating from Drip London at 27, Clerkenwell Road. Four months on, and despite 
numerous complaints from the residents of this building, the disturbance caused by loud 
music, particularly deep bass sounds, has persisted. This issue not only disrupts the peace 

Page 47



within all our homes but also raises questions about the adherence to current license 
conditions.  

We therefore believe that a proactive approach to noise control, including the installation and 
verification of a noise limiter, is essential as a condition of retaining the existing license 
before any consideration of a license extension.  

The disturbance isn't limited the sound within the club; it extends to patrons double parking 
obstructing circulation on both sides of Clerkenwell road and St. John Street, for instance. 

Please note that he essence of our objection lies not in opposition to the club's operation but 
in the imperative need to see a tangible improvement in noise management and respect for 
license conditions. The extension of operating hours without addressing these foundational 
issues does not seem conducive to the well-being of the community.  

In summary, while we hold no prejudice against the good intentions of the new owner and are 
open to constructive solutions, our experiences thus far compel us to request that before any 
license extension, the license be contingent upon:  

1. Strict adherence to existing license conditions, particularly regarding noise control
and hours of operation.

2. Installation and effective operation of a noise limiting system to mitigate
disturbances.

3. A commitment to building a positive relationship with the community (including
street safety and considerate parking), as well as transparent communication and
responsiveness to concerns.

Thank you for considering our perspective in this matter. We remain hopeful for a resolution 
that respects the interests of all parties involved.  

Sincerely, 

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



4

 Islington Council has been very successful in making Clerkenwell Road and St John’s Street around 
number 27 and the side streets off Clerkenwell Road a hub of high end design showrooms which are 
internationally known and visited by many visitors. Having a late night club with disturbances on the 
street and mess left outside clashes with the successful showroom environment.  

I strongly object to this application for all the above reasons. 

Thank you for your consideration.  
Kind regards, 

Page 52



Licensing Authority Representation 

Licensing Act 2003 

Application for a new premises licence in respect of: 

Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, EC1M 5RN 

Licensable activities and timings applied for are: 

New entertainments and late-night food and alcohol (on & off) Sunday-Wednesday 0900 to 0200 

and from 0900 to 0400 Thursday to Saturdays.  

The applicant currently holds a premises licence at this venue, which was transferred in October 

2023. The hours on the current licence are for all licensable activities up to 2am each day. 

The grounds for the representation are: 

• Public nuisance.

Public Safety

Prevention of Crime or Disorder

Licensing Policy Considerations 

Licensing Policies 5 and 6 Licensing Hours 

Licensing Policy 8               Management Standards 

Licensing Policy 22 and 23  Noise Associated with Licensable Activities 

Issues of Concern 

The applicant has applied for operating hours, which are outside of the core policy hours for a bar or 

night club. Where representations are received from responsible authorities or other persons, the 

Licensing Authority may seek to restrict hours of opening where it is appropriate to promote the 

licensing objectives. Policy hours for a night club are Sunday to Thursdays to 1am and on Fridays and 

Saturdays to 2am. 

When dealing with new and variation applications the Licensing Authority will give more favourable 

consideration to applications with the opening and closing times listed in the Policy. 

The premises is situated within the Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact policy area. Possible exceptions 

to the Policy could be: 

1. Applications with comprehensive operating schedules that meet all the following criteria may

be able to demonstrate that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of

the licensing objectives:

a. The provision of mixed use or flexible premises that

i. Support the people visiting the area during the day

ii. encourage people to stay in the area after work

iii. encourage people staying in local hotels to socialise in the area

Rep 11

Page 53



iv. support the wider cultural offer in the area

b. Premises that are not alcohol led

c. Premises with hours of operation consistent with framework hours

d. Premises supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises with robust

arrangements to prevent vertical drinking, for example fully seated venues

e. Premises that can demonstrate high standards of management with respect to

preventing public nuisance associated with waste management & littering

f. Commitment from the premises licence holder to:

i. actively supports Pubwatch through regular attendance and engagement

ii. implement the Operation Nightsafe Best Practice Scheme

This premises has a history of noise issues when it was previously Dust and then Elysium. The licence 

holders for Dust carried out extensive noise control works, employing the services of a qualified 

acoustic consultant, carrying out surveys and tests from residents’ homes in St John Street as a 

property there shares party walls with 27 Clerkenwell Road.  Residents from that property have 

made noise nuisance reports and made representations to this application.  

According to Council records, since 1 November 2023, there have been 24 reports of nuisance to the 

Councils ASB Reporting service. Nuisance was witnessed on two occasions and abated at the time of 

the visits. On other occasions ASB officers were unable to contact the complainants, calls went to 

voicemail, unable to access residents’ homes, could not visit before premises closed or gave advice 

over the phone.  

The opening night for Drip on 1/11/23 caused complaints and disturbance out in the street as on 

investigation it transpired that the management had arranged a private party for guests, but due to 

social media many more people than expected arrived and were left outside, causing disturbance 

and parking issues. ASB Officers attended, witnessed noise nuisance, and asked manager to lower 

music levels. 

When assessing the applicant or licensee’s ability to demonstrate a commitment to high standards 

of management the Licensing Authority considers whether the applicant or licensee: 

• can demonstrate comprehensive knowledge of best practice

• has sought advice from the responsible authorities

• has implemented any advice that been given by the responsible authorities

• can understand verbal and written advice and legal requirements

• can demonstrate knowledge of the licensing objectives, relevant parts of the Licensing

Policy and their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003

• can run their businesses lawfully and in accordance with good business practices

• can demonstrate a track record of compliance with legal requirements

The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting the amenity of residents and businesses in the 

vicinity of licensed premises, particularly when late hours have been sought.  

Recommendations 

Page 54



The Licensing Authority suggests that should the application be granted an acoustic survey must be 

carried out and levels set to the satisfaction of the Council’s Pollution Team before the new licence 

can be used for licensable activities. 

The current premises licence has a safe capacity of 150 persons.  This figure was set by Building 

Control and Fire Safety officers in 2012 and the layout has not changed since that time.  

The premises must have in place Arrival and Dispersal Policies for staff to implement to ensure that 

customers arrive at and leave the venue in a safe and quiet manner. 

The current premises licence – LN/6059-011123 must be surrendered if the new application is 

granted. 

The Licensing Authority recommends the Licensing Sub Committee take all representations and 

submissions by the applicants into account and consider the possible impact on residents living 

nearby, bearing in mind any measures proposed by the applicants to minimise disturbance. 

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Regulatory Services 

0207 527 3031 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

29/01/2024 

Page 55



From: Santis, Fanos
To: Guy Hicks
Cc: Burrell, Ryan; Licensing; CNMailbox-.IslingtonPoliceLicensingTeam@met.police.uk; Ford, Andrew; Lane, Terrie; Jones,

Carol
Subject: Premises Licence Application: Drip London, BASEMENT to FIRST, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5RN.
Date: 16 January 2024 15:34:36
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.png

Dear Guy,

I am in receipt of the above application.

I act on behalf of the Environmental Pollution, Policy and Projects Team, who are one of the responsible
authorities that deal with the licensing objective for the prevention of public nuisance and are consulted on
all premises license applications in the borough.

I have reviewed the application and how your client intends to prevent nuisance and, based on the
submitted conditions, the pollution team objects to the application based on the fact that there are
insufficient conditions proposed to deal with that licensing objective.

However, the objection will be withdrawn if the following conditions are accepted by your client:

1. Waste collections and the delivery of licensable goods to the venue shall be restricted to the hours
between 09:00 and 20:00 Monday-Saturday. No waste collections or deliveries shall be made on a
Sunday or Bank Holiday.

2. A dedicated licensed taxi/mini cab service shall be available with the premises for customers.

3. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee shall
take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. Upon direction by the council’s
licensing team or pollution team, this may include the recalibration of any noise limiting devices, the
installation and calibration of noise limiting devices if none are present or are defective if present,
or the review and editing of any noise management and dispersal policy.

4. Where a noise limiting device is installed, sound levels shall be set so as not to cause a nuisance to
the nearest noise sensitive premises and levels agreed with the Council’s Pollution Team. A
calibration certificate shall be provided by your acoustic consultant to show maximum levels in dB(L)
Leq(1min) and dB(A) Leq(1min), as well as in the 125 and 63 Hz frequency bands (dB,Leq(1min)) ,
measured within the venue.

5. If there are any changes in the distribution and type of loudspeakers or amplification equipment
serving the sound system, then the noise control system shall be re-calibrated to ensure the music
levels given above are not exceeded.  The calibration certificate shall be forwarded to the Licensing
team.

6. The licensee shall ensure that the limiters are tamper-proof, are located in a secure, lockable
cupboard or similar location and access restricted to the licensee or a designated manager and are
maintained and calibrated as instructed by the Acoustic Consultant or if the council requests an up-
to-date calibration certificate if substantiated noise complaints are received, and the calibration
certificates shall be submitted to the Council within 28 days of the request.

7. Condition 13 submitted as part of the application shall be changed to:

a. The licensee shall develop a Noise Management and Dispersal Policy to control noise

Rep 12

Page 56



coming from the venue, including people noise, and to control noise from customers either
congregating outside or leaving the area. The Noise Management and Dispersal Policy shall
be agreed with the Council’s Licensing Authority and be reviewed and revised periodically
or after incidences to ensure that public nuisance is prevented from recurring.

8. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied via delivery from the premises.

Please let me know as soon as possible whether or not your client agrees to the above suggested
conditions. If there are conditions that your client does not agree with, please offer suitable alternative
conditions and reasons why those particular conditions are unacceptable. Where we cannot agree on
conditions, the matter will be referred to the council’s licensing committee for a hearing.

Kind regards,

Fanos Santis
Senior Environmental Health Officer,
Environmental Pollution, Policy and Projects Team,
Climate Change and Transport Division,
Environment and Climate Change Department,
Islington Council, 2nd Floor, Waste Recycling Centre,
1 Cottage Rd, London N7 8TP
Tel: 020 7527 3963, email:fanos.santis@islington.gov.uk, www.islington.gov.uk

NB: I am now part time and work only Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays.

The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this E-
Mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.

The information in this message is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. Access to this message by any other person is not permitted. If you are not the intended
recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it,
is prohibited and may be unlawful.

Follow us on Twitter @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife
Like us on Facebook @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife
Follow IslingtonLife on Instagram @IslingtonLife

Islington Commitment signature banner

Page 57



Re: Drip.

Our Ref: 203213/250124/02

Date: 25th Jan 2024 

Premises Licence Application. METROPOLITAN POLICE SERVICE 

Drip 

27 Clerkenwell Rd, 

Islington, 

EC1M 5RN. 

Contact Agent: ravenconsultants@yahoo.com 

____________________ 

Dear Mr Hicks, 

I understand you are instructed and acting for the above venue. 

Many thanks for your premises licence application and for your time on the telephone discussing 

this proposed operation. 

As you know, police hold responsibility for ensuring that any application adheres to the local 

authorities licensing objectives, and that proposals do not invite any heightened risk or likelihood of 

crime, disorder or anti-social behaviour. 

Please accept this Police Representation. 

The venue in question is a long standing Nightclub, having run in various guises for many years 

including as ‘Dust’ and ‘Elysium’, before sitting closed for several years, and now operating under 

new management.  

There have been issues logged at the venue in its new guise, including on its opening night when 

we understand an unexpectedly high number of persons attended and the security operation in 

place failed to retain full control. 

I am further aware that numerous complaints about the venue have been received by the Local 

Authority. However, my enquiries with them suggest that all relate to noise rather than any disorder 

or anti-social behaviour. Whilst repeat complaints do invite concern, with experience telling us that 

Rep 13

Page 58



such issues can escalate towards areas of Police responsibility, I am aware that you have been in 

constructive dialogue with the Local Authority EHO Mr Fanos Santis regarding these aspects. 

____________________ 

I know you are aware of the Local Authorities Statement of Licensing Policy (recently republished 

for 2023-2027), which includes various policies seeking to minimise further saturation of licensed 

premises, and mitigate the heightened risk inherent in late opening alcohol-led venues.  

The venue in question sits within Clerkenwell CIZ, an area identified by the local authority as being 

heavily saturated with licenced venues, and subject to the licensing policy for that area. 

Police fully support this policy and are of the view (mirroring that laid out in the Policy), that any 

venue should only be operating beyond Policy Framework hours when running to the highest 

standards of management and subject to a suitably robust schedule of conditions. 

Licensing Policy 6 lays out Framework hours, and states that ‘favourable consideration’ will be 

given to Nightclub venues with a closing time of 2:00am. This application seeks a closing time of 

4:30am. 

I am aware that the venue has operated using several Temporary Event Notices (ie allowing for 

extended opening through til 4am) but observations and direct enquiries with management 

confirm that such nights have attracted very low numbers, and the venue has not been operating 

up to the extent of the TENs. Police must therefore conclude that thus-far the operation is untested 

in terms of running at capacity to the hours sought.  

____________________ 

Given all of the above, and mindful of in particular the extended operating hours applied for, 

please consider the following 3 points seeking to address the risk inherent in late-night operation 

and the various safety concerns associated, and ensure a robust, comprehensive, fit-for-purpose 

licence. 

_____ 

1. Any new licence shall only be granted upon surrender of the previous (existing) licence.

_____ 

2. Any new licence shall allow for alcohol on-sales only.

I note that this application, as is traditional for such venues, seeks both on and off-sales. 

The Statement of Licensing Policy outlines specific, data-led concerns around off sales across 

Islington Borough, both regarding the over-saturation of such licences and the ongoing (and 

Page 59



interconnected), issues of street drinking, vagrancy, vulnerability, and associated crime and 

disorder.  

I can see no requirement for such with this operation and would seek to minimise the risk around 

any future change of use by removing it. 

_____ 

3. Please consider the following proposed conditions, for inclusion on the Annex 2 schedule, to

mitigate the various risks and concerns held. Many are already entered in the condition list

kindly enclosed with your application, others are additions or re-wordings.

1. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained at all times that the premises is open for

licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria; 

a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is

working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these checks, showing the 

date and time of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to police or authorised 

council officers on request 

b) The police must be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of

business for any reason 

c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length

image of anyone entering 

d) The system will provide coverage of any exterior part of the premises accessible to the public

e) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped

f) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free

of charge to police or authorised council officers on request, (subject to the Data Protection Act 

1998) within 24 hours of any request, 

g) At all times the premises are open for licensable activity, there will be a person on the premises

who can operate the system sufficiently to allow police or authorised council officers to view 

footage on request.  

h) Any and all CCTV cameras in and on the premises shall be mounted either well beyond the

reach of patrons, or protected (ie by perspex dome or similar) such that patrons cannot interfere 

with, obstruct, or re-orientate the camera. 

Page 60



2. Clear and permanent signage shall be prominently displayed at the entrance to the premises

highlighting: 

a) CCTV in operation.

b) Challenge 25 Proof of Age Scheme in operation.

c) Any Persons seen to be parking vehicles unlawfully/irresponsibly will be declined entry.

d) Residential Area: Please be respectful of our neighbours and leave quietly.

e) Co-operation with any premises search policy in operation is an absolute condition of entry.

f) [Current business contact telephone number for venue management].

3. An incident log shall be maintained at the premises, and made available to the Police or any

authorised officer upon request. All entries will include time/date/name of person making entry. 

Said log will record the following; 

a) all crimes reported to the venue

b) all ejections of patrons

c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder

d) any incidents of disorder either in or directly outside the venue

e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons

f) any faults in the CCTV system

g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

h) any refusal of alcohol sales

4. In the event that any assault or serious crime is (or appears to have been), committed on the

premises, the management will immediately ensure that; 

a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without delay;

b) All safe and practicable steps are taken to apprehend any suspects pending the arrival of the

police; 

c) The crime scene is preserved so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by the

police. 

Page 61



5. There shall be at least 1 personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when open

for licensable activities beyond 9pm. 

6. Regular toilet checks shall take place and be logged, recording the staff member, date and

time of the check, and noting any issues found. Said log shall be made available to the Police or 

Local Authority upon reasonable request. 

7. SIA registered door supervisors will be on duty at the venue subject to the following:

a) On any date when operating beyond 9pm a minimum of 2x SIA shall be employed from doors

opening until the venue is shut and all patrons can reasonably be considered to have been 

dispersed. 

b) On any date when operating beyond midnight a minimum of 4x SIA shall be employed from

doors opening until the venue is shut and all patrons can reasonably be considered to have been 

dispersed.  

c) The management shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that on any given date at least 1x

SIA shall be female. 

d) All SIA shall be suitably and smartly attired, with accreditation clearly displayed in lanyard or

arm-band in accordance with current SIA directions. 

e) All SIA shall be equipped with functioning body-cam and 2-way radio to enable live

communication between themselves and the manager on duty. 

f) An SIA register shall be maintained on the premises and made available to Police and Local

Authority officers upon reasonable request. Said register shall record all SIA door supervisors 

employed at the premises. This shall include date, name, badge number, agency if applicable, 

time shift start (signed in), time shift finish (signed out). 

8. A comprehensive and fully equipped first aid box will be available at the premises at all times.

All SIA, and any other FAW/FREC trained members of staff, shall be aware of its location. 

9. There shall be no children under 18 on the premises at any time or for any reason.

Page 62



10. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme. The only forms of

acceptable identification shall be: 

a) Valid and in-date photographic driving licence;

b) Valid and in-date passport;

c) Current Military/UK Services Photo ID;

d) Valid and in-date PASS Hologram ID Card.

11. The licensee shall train and instruct the management and staff to prevent the admission of,

and ensure the immediate and orderly departure of: 

a) any and all persons who appear to be drunk and/or disorderly

b) any and all persons displaying signs of other substance abuse.

12. The Premises shall implement, train, and operate Standard Operating Procedures, written and

maintained cognisant of advice from the Police and Local Authority and available for inspection 

upon request, to cover the following aspects of operation:  

a) SIA deployments / door policy / IDScan / queue management / entry/re-entry & search

b) Drugs & weapons seizure, storage & collection

c) Patron safety / medical provision / welfare & vulnerability

d) Critical incident/emergency/evacuation procedures

13. Non-intoxicating beverages shall be available to patrons at all times where alcohol is sold, and

potable tap water shall be provided free of charge upon request. 

14. All drinking vessels used shall be polycarbonate. All drinks in glass bottles shall be decanted into

polycarbonate containers or polycarbonate carafes prior to being served, subject to the 

following: 

a)Champagne/Prosecco, and bottles of spirits with a minimum size of 70cl may be supplied by

waiter/waitress service to tables. 

Page 63



b) Staff shall monitor said bottles and ensure they are cleared promptly from the tables.

c) Customers shall not be permitted to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles nor to drink

directly from the bottle. 

d) Subject to the written agreement of the Islington Police Licensing Team, a copy of which will be

kept at the premises and made available for inspection by Police or Local Authority officers, the 

use of Polycarbonates may be waived for certain events. Should such an exception be requested, 

the venue shall make a formal request no less than 7 days prior to the given event. 

15. The Premises Licence Holder shall install and maintain an ID scanning system subject to the

following: 

a) The system shall at all times be live and networked, (ie not simply operating as a stand-alone).

b) Details of every customer entering the venue shall be scanned using the system.

b) Customer details shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days.

c) Copies of customer details shall be made available to officers of the Police or Local Authority

upon request. 

d) Subject to the written agreement of the Islington Police Licensing Team, a copy of which will be

kept at the premises and made available for inspection by officers of the police or local authority, 

the use of ID Scan may be waived for certain events. Should such an exception be requested, the 

venue shall make a formal request, with accompanying risk assessment and rationale, no less than 

10 days prior to the given event.  

16. An absolute maximum capacity of 150 persons (across both floors) shall apply, as per current

Fire Risk Assessment. Numbers shall be monitored via a suitable system (ie clickers) to ensure no 

overcrowding. The real time capacity shall be made immediately available to Police or Authorised 

Officers upon request.  

17. The venue shall operate a designated smoking area to the front of the premises subject to the

following: 

a) From 9pm until close this area will be demarked and controlled by barrier and monitored by SIA

and CCTV. 

b) The area will be limited to a maximum capacity of 10 persons.

Page 64



c) Any and all patrons employing the smoking area shall be fully searched upon re-entry.

18. All staff members engaged in selling alcohol on the premises shall, upon induction and every 12

months thereafter, receive training pertinent to the Licensing Act. 

All such training shall be fully documented, signed by the employee, and kept at the premises for 

inspection by Police or other authorised officers. 

Training shall include at a minimum: 

a) The premises age verification policy

b) Dealing with refusal of sales

c) Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase alcohol

d) Identifying signs of intoxication

____________________ 

As always, and as discussed during our phone conversation, I would welcome ongoing dialogue 

on this application and am very happy to discuss the matter by phone or email.  

PC Adam Peace 

Licensing Officer 

Islington Police Licensing Team 

Page 65



Fire Safety Regulation, North East 1 Team 
169 Union Street   London SE1 0LL 

T 020 8555 1200 x89171 

Minicom 020 7960 3629 
london-fire.gov.uk 

FS_C08_04  (Rev 7,  01/05/2022) Page 1 of 2 

Licensing 
Islington Council 
222 Upper Street, 
London 
N1 1XR 

The London Fire Commissioner is the 
fire and rescue authority for London 

Date  1 February  2024 
Our Ref  03/10745 

Your Ref   GH/Drip/12/23 

Dear Sir/Madam 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

Premises: Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road  EC1M 5RN 

The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority for London. The 
Commissioner is responsible for enforcing the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (as 
amended) in London.  

With reference to the application dated ,29/12/2023   as shown on hand drawn  plan,    the 
application has been examined and the Commissioner will make a representation to the Licensing 
Authority. 

The Applicant has been informed, by copy of this letter, of this representation. 

 Please confirm, at your earliest convenience, the date/time/location of the hearing. 
The items that are of concern to this authority are detailed on the attached schedule. 

The representation may be withdrawn if all of the matters detailed in the attached schedule are 
addressed to the satisfaction of the Commissioner. The Commissioner must be advised of the 
completion of the work at least 5 working days before the committee hearing date, so that an 
inspection can be arranged.  

This letter is without prejudice to the powers of the Licensing Authority and to any requirements or 
recommendations that may be made by enforcing authorities under other legislation. It is also 
without prejudice to any requirements or recommendations that may be made by  the Commissioner 
under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (as amended) or the Petroleum 
(Consolidation) Regulations 2014.  All alterations should comply with the appropriate provisions of 
the current Building Regulations. 

Rep 14

Page 66



Page 2 of 2 

Any queries regarding this letter should be addressed to the person named below.  If you are 
dissatisfied in any way with the response given, please ask to speak to the Team Leader quoting our 
reference. 

Yours faithfully, 

L.Field

for Assistant Commissioner (Fire Safety) 
Directorate of Operations 
FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk 

C.C.: Guy Hicks, 69 Downham Road, Billericay CM11 1PZ
(Ravenconsultants@yahoo.com)

Reply to Leonard Field 
Direct T ext 89170 (Admin) 

Page 67



FS_C08_04b  (Rev 4,  25/01/2019) 

Our Ref.03/10745 Your Ref.GH/DRIP/12/23 

SCHEDULE  Sheet      1 OF 1 

The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority for London. 

Schedule referred to in the letter reference  03/10745  under the Licensing Act 2003, issued by the Commissioner on 
1 February 2024. January 2024 

Where appropriate, a plan may form part of this Schedule to illustrate the steps which, in the opinion of the 
Commissioner, need to be taken in order to promote the public safety objective. 

NOTE : Notwithstanding any consultation undertaken by the Commissioner, before you make any alterations to 
the workplace, you must apply for local authority building control department approval (and/or the approval of 
any other bodies having a statutory interest in the premises) if their permission is required for those alterations 
to be made. 

Licensing 
Objective 

not 
adequately 
addressed 

Location and detail of matters 
which are considered to put 

people at risk in the event of a  
fire emergency 

Steps considered necessary to promote the public safety 
licensing objective 

Public Safety Ground, first floor, basement 

Excessive numbers of persons: 
up to 200 proposed with only 
one final exit. 

Numbers of persons on the premises to be limited to a 
maximum of 60 at any  one time. 

Public Safety Although no performances are 
listed on the application, there 
is a room on the 3rd floor (VIP 
Lounge) that it is stated is used 
by performers for changing. 
The travel distance to the final 
exit greatly exceeds  the limit 
for one exit and needs to pass a 
kitchen on a single staircase. 

The room should not be used. 

Public Safety The changing area in the 
basement staff room.  The area 
used exceeds the travel 
distance for one exit. 

This area should not be used except for storage. 

Protecting your personal data and privacy 
The Brigade is committed to using personal data in a responsible and transparent way. To find out more visit 
www.london-fire.gov.uk/privacy.  

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Address: BASEMENT to FIRST, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5RN.

Application received: 05/01/2024

Last date for representations: 02/02/2024

Reference: WK/230040256

Licensable activities and timings applied for:

Sale of Alcohol On & Off The Premises, Recorded Music, Live Music:

Sunday – Wednesday – 09:00 – 02:00

Thursday – Saturday – 09:00 – 04:00

Late Night Refreshments:

Sunday – Wednesday – 23:00 – 02:00

Thursday – Saturday – 23:00 – 04:00

Opening Hours:

Sunday – Wednesday – 09:00 – 02:30

Thursday – Saturday – 09:00 – 04:30

Ryan Burrell
Licensing Support Officer
Licensing
Community Safety, Resilience and Security
Islington Council
222 Upper Street, N1 1XR
Direct Tel: 020 7527 4330

Licensing Duty Line: 020 7527 3031 or email licensing@islington.gov.uk

Follow us on Twitter @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife 
Like us on Facebook @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife 
Follow IslingtonLife on Instagram @IslingtonLife

The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public disclosure under
the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt
from disclosure, the confidentiality of this E-Mail and your reply cannot be
guaranteed. It is intended solely for the addressee. If you are not the intended
recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be
taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful.

Page 71



Appendix 4

P
age 72



WK/230041937 21/01/2024 Drip Club27 Clerkenwell RoadEC1M 5RN CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 
WK/230041928 21/01/2024 Drip London playing extremely loud music. CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 
WK/230041898 21/01/2024  Once again constant music noise all night from Drip Club CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230041855 20/01/2024 

 I can hear the loud Music from Drip Night Club yet again. I have heard it all night but 
now it is going on past their license time: 3.00. This is outside of their agreed times and 
is yet again a nuisance. The club should be shut down for this illegal act CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230040465 08/01/2024 

On the night of Friday 5th/6th January I was disturbed again. Each disturbance is short 
regular and loud. I did not call the number you gave as I felt that as soon as you would 
be able to arrive the disturbance woul 

WK/230039811 02/01/2024 

Hi Licensing, 

 Further to my complaint reference 3630408 I have not heard from the Council. I am 
concerned as my complaint was not referred to (and so I presume the council did not 
know about it) when it granted licences for Drip London, 27 Clerkenwell 

CM14 - Logged and advice given 
WK/230038137 12/12/2023  Bass noise from music venue CM13 - Referred to Other Service 

WK/230038047 10/12/2023 
This Drip club, which advertises as a restaurant, constantly plays very loud music with no 
sound barriers keeping me and my neighbours up throughout the week CM05 - Nuisance wit.abated informally 

WK/230038042 10/12/2023  Loud music, bass vibration CM05 - Nuisance wit.abated informally 

WK/230037831 07/12/2023 
 Music from Drip london club is loud tonight and having trouble getting tosleep . Heavy 
bass and higher frequencies depending on the track being played CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230037829 07/12/2023  Noise fron music from Club yet again CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230037827 07/12/2023 

 Yet again the sound of music coming from this club is keeping us awake. I don't know 
how many times I have complained about it. It would be good if the council could 
investigate and do something. CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230037758 07/12/2023  Music (bass) from Drip club CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230037249 01/12/2023 

 Continuous loud music heard from Drip London club during weekdays and weekends. 
No soundproofing placed in yet despite their letter, which also inappropriately offered 
all tenants of my flat 20% off drinks and food. We most certainly have no interest in CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

P
age 73



WK/230037173 30/11/2023 

 This is the fourth time I am complaining about the noise coming through my walls from 
the establishment called Drip on Clerkenwell Road. It is clear that there is not sufficient 
sound dampening in place. It is outrageous that nothing is being done about CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230036648 25/11/2023 

 Licensed premises AGAIN making excessive noise. Vibrations from loud sound system 
despite repeated requests to reduce volume. It is currently past 2AM with loud music 
ongoing - the premises are only licensed to operate until 2AM. CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230036639 25/11/2023 

"A resident by name Ferride(Mob 07557997401) of Michael Cliffe,Flat-144 was at the 
concierge to allegedly report that the resident above(Flat-148) her Flat, has been using 
some sort of power tool to be drilling and moving things and making soo much noise, CM14 - Logged and advice given 

WK/230036280 22/11/2023 Loud music, bass vibration CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230036026 19/11/2023 

 I am complaining about the newly opened 'Drip London by Angle 90' club. I can hear 
music from it so clearly that I can make out what song is being played, the bass is 
extremely loud and distressing and this continues on way past their licensing hours of CM12 - Investigated. NoActionRequired 

WK/230035975 18/11/2023 
 It is coming from the location. They opened recently and have not put in sufficient 
sound dampeners. noisy in the flat. CM13 - Referred to Other Service 

WK/230035933 18/11/2023 

Last night there was noise coming through the building from a new night club which has 
opened up on Clerkenwell Road called Drip. This is not the first time the loud noise has 
prevented me from sleeping. CM14 - Logged and advice given 

WK/230034406 02/11/2023 
 Very loud music from new club business at 25 Clerkenwell road . They clearly have no 
spund proofing as required CM05 - Nuisance wit.abated informally 

WK/230034404 01/11/2023  Loud music noise from newly licensed premises at 27 Clerkenwell Road EC1 CM05 - Nuisance wit.abated informally 
 

P
age 74



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule     Appendix 5 

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of a Metropolitan Police. All public areas including all entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all 
times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period 
of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available upon the request of 
the Police or other authorised officer. 

 
2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall 

be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to the public. This staff member shall be 
able to show Police or any other authorised officer recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested. 

 
3. The premises licence holder will ensure that a personal licence holder will be on duty whenever the 

venue is open and operating past 9pm on Friday and Saturday nights. 
 
4. Four SIA door staff will be employed at the premises on a Friday and Saturday from 9pm (including 

1 female SIA if possible) and will remain at the premises until 30 minutes after closing time. 
 
5. All door supervisors shall enter their full details in the premises daily register at the 

commencement of their work, including their name, time on duty, time off duty and a method of 
contact. 

 
6. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
7. Where the sale or supply of alcohol is taking place employees of the premises must request sight 

of evidence of the age of any person appearing to be under 25 years of age (Challenge 25). Such 
evidence be in the form of a photo ID such as a driving licence or passport or PASS card. 

 
8. The premises will operate a zero-tolerance policy towards drugs and drug use and will comply with 

any drugs or weapons policies set by the Police or local authority. 
 
9. The premises will display prominent signage by every entrance and exit explaining/requesting: 

(a) Customers to leave the premises quietly and respect local residents. 
(b) CCTV in operation 
(c) Drugs policy 
(d) Weapons policy 

 
10. On a yearly basis all staff shall be given refresher training on the legislation relating to sales of 

alcohol to underage persons, drunken persons and how to deal with people incapacitated by drink 
or drugs. Such training shall include first aid and any welfare training such as WAVE (or as 
amended). Records of the training to be kept at the venue and made available to police or 
authorised officer upon request. Any new staff will be trained on appointment. 

 Page 75



11. Regular toilet checks will take place and be recorded noting the time of the visit and any issues
found.

12. Any off sales of alcohol shall be in a sealed container. Customers will not be allowed to leave with
any open drink’s container including those leaving the premises to smoke and return.

13. In addition to notices asking customers to leave quietly and respect the neighbourhood the
premises will devise and implement a dispersal policy which will be retained on the premises for
inspection by Police or other authorised officer.

14. The smoking area will be to the front of the premises. From 2100 hrs this area will be controlled by
barrier and monitored by SIA and CCTV. The area will be limited to 10 people after 2200hrs and
those customers will be searched on re-entry.

15. The premises will ensure that any queue is managed, that there are no obstructions of the highway
or footpath and that customers are queuing in an orderly manner.

16. The premises will have a noise limiting device set so as any noise will not cause a nuisance to the
nearest noise sensitive premises.

17. Whenever the venue has any form of regulated entertainment all windows and doors shall remain
closed.

18. The premises will display a dedicated phone number to the front of the premises of the DPS for
use by any person wishing to make a complaint during the operational hours of the licence.

19. The duty manager will ensure the front of the premises is swept and/or washed with any litter
collected and disposed of in accordance with approved waste arrangements.

20. Refuse, including bottles, shall not be taken outside the premises between the hours of 2300 and
0700.

Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Service – Not agreed at the time of writing the report 

1. Waste collections and the delivery of licensable goods to the venue shall be restricted to the hours
between 09:00 and 20:00 Monday-Saturday. No waste collections or deliveries shall be made on a
Sunday or Bank Holiday.

2. A dedicated licensed taxi/mini cab service shall be available with the premises for customers.

3. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee
shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence. Upon direction by the council’s
licensing team or pollution team, this may include the recalibration of any noise limiting devices,
the installation and calibration of noise limiting devices if none are present or are defective if
present, or the review and editing of any noise management and dispersal policy.

4. Where a noise limiting device is installed, sound levels shall be set so as not to cause a nuisance
to the nearest noise sensitive premises and levels agreed with the Council’s Pollution Team. A
calibration certificate shall be provided by your acoustic consultant to show maximum levels in
dB(L) Leq(1min) and dB(A) Leq(1min), as well as in the 125 and 63 Hz frequency bands
(dB,Leq(1min)) , measured within the venue.

5. If there are any changes in the distribution and type of loudspeakers or amplification equipment
serving the sound system, then the noise control system shall be re-calibrated to ensure the music
levels given above are not exceeded.  The calibration certificate shall be forwarded to the
Licensing team. Page 76



6. The licensee shall ensure that the limiters are tamper-proof, are located in a secure, lockable
cupboard or similar location and access restricted to the licensee or a designated manager and are
maintained and calibrated as instructed by the Acoustic Consultant or if the council requests an up-
to-date calibration certificate if substantiated noise complaints are received, and the calibration
certificates shall be submitted to the Council within 28 days of the request.

7. Condition 13 submitted as part of the application shall be changed to:
The licensee shall develop a Noise Management and Dispersal Policy to control noise coming from
the venue, including people noise, and to control noise from customers either congregating outside
or leaving the area. The Noise Management and Dispersal Policy shall be agreed with the
Council’s Licensing Authority and be reviewed and revised periodically or after incidences to
ensure that public nuisance is prevented from recurring.

8. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied via delivery from the premises.

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police – Not agreed at the time of writing the report 

The Police have asked for the following undertakings to be agreed if this licence is granted;  

1. Any new licence shall only be granted upon surrender of the previous (existing) licence.

2. Any new licence shall allow for alcohol on-sales only.

And the following conditions; 

1. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained at all times that the premises is open for
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria;
a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system
is working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these checks, showing the
date and time of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to police or authorised
council officers on request
b) The police must be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason
c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length
image of anyone entering
d) The system will provide coverage of any exterior part of the premises accessible to the public
e) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped
f) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free
of charge to police or authorised council officers on request, (subject to the Data Protection Act
1998) within 24 hours of any request,
g) At all times the premises are open for licensable activity, there will be a person on the premises
who can operate the system sufficiently to allow police or authorised council officers to view
footage on request.
h) Any and all CCTV cameras in and on the premises shall be mounted either well beyond the
reach of patrons, or protected (ie by perspex dome or similar) such that patrons cannot interfere
with, obstruct, or re-orientate the camera.

2. Clear and permanent signage shall be prominently displayed at the entrance to the premises
highlighting:
a) CCTV in operation.
b) Challenge 25 Proof of Age Scheme in operation.
c) Any Persons seen to be parking vehicles unlawfully/irresponsibly will be declined entry.Page 77



d) Residential Area: Please be respectful of our neighbours and leave quietly.  
e) Co-operation with any premises search policy in operation is an absolute condition of entry.  
f) Current business contact telephone number for venue management.  

3.  An incident log shall be maintained at the premises, and made available to the Police or any 
authorised officer upon request. All entries will include time/date/name of person making entry. 
Said log will record the following;  
a) all crimes reported to the venue  
b) all ejections of patrons  
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
d) any incidents of disorder either in or directly outside the venue  
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
f) any faults in the CCTV system  
g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
h) any refusal of alcohol sales  

4.  In the event that any assault or serious crime is (or appears to have been), committed on the 
premises, the management will immediately ensure that;  
a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without delay;  
b) All safe and practicable steps are taken to apprehend any suspects pending the arrival of the 
police;  
c) The crime scene is preserved so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by 
the police. 

5.  There shall be at least 1 personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when open 
for licensable activities beyond 9pm.  

6.  Regular toilet checks shall take place and be logged, recording the staff member, date and time of 
the check, and noting any issues found. Said log shall be made available to the Police or Local 
Authority upon reasonable request.  

7.  SIA registered door supervisors will be on duty at the venue subject to the following:  
a) On any date when operating beyond 9pm a minimum of 2x SIA shall be employed from doors 
opening until the venue is shut and all patrons can reasonably be considered to have been 
dispersed.  
b) On any date when operating beyond midnight a minimum of 4x SIA shall be employed from 
doors opening until the venue is shut and all patrons can reasonably be considered to have been 
dispersed.  
c) The management shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that on any given date at least 1x 
SIA shall be female.  
d) All SIA shall be suitably and smartly attired, with accreditation clearly displayed in lanyard or 
arm-band in accordance with current SIA directions.  
e) All SIA shall be equipped with functioning body-cam and 2-way radio to enable live 
communication between themselves and the manager on duty.  
f) An SIA register shall be maintained on the premises and made available to Police and Local 
Authority officers upon reasonable request. Said register shall record all SIA door supervisors 
employed at the premises. This shall include date, name, badge number, agency if applicable, time 
shift start (signed in), time shift finish (signed out).  

Page 78



8. A comprehensive and fully equipped first aid box will be available at the premises at all times. All
SIA, and any other FAW/FREC trained members of staff, shall be aware of its location.

9. There shall be no children under 18 on the premises at any time or for any reason.

10. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme. The only forms of acceptable
identification shall be:
a) Valid and in-date photographic driving licence;
b) Valid and in-date passport;
c) Current Military/UK Services Photo ID;
d) Valid and in-date PASS Hologram ID Card.

11. The licensee shall train and instruct the management and staff to prevent the admission of, and
ensure the immediate and orderly departure of:
a) any and all persons who appear to be drunk and/or disorderly
b) any and all persons displaying signs of other substance abuse.

12. The Premises shall implement, train, and operate Standard Operating Procedures, written and
maintained cognisant of advice from the Police and Local Authority and available for inspection
upon request, to cover the following aspects of operation:
a) SIA deployments / door policy / IDScan / queue management / entry/re-entry & search
b) Drugs & weapons seizure, storage & collection
c) Patron safety / medical provision / welfare & vulnerability
d) Critical incident/emergency/evacuation procedures

13. Non-intoxicating beverages shall be available to patrons at all times where alcohol is sold, and
potable tap water shall be provided free of charge upon request.

14. All drinking vessels used shall be polycarbonate. All drinks in glass bottles shall be decanted into
polycarbonate containers or polycarbonate carafes prior to being served, subject to the following:
a) Champagne/Prosecco, and bottles of spirits with a minimum size of 70cl may be supplied by
waiter/waitress service to tables.
b) Staff shall monitor said bottles and ensure they are cleared promptly from the tables.
c) Customers shall not be permitted to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles nor to drink
directly from the bottle.
d) Subject to the written agreement of the Islington Police Licensing Team, a copy of which will be
kept at the premises and made available for inspection by Police or Local Authority officers, the
use of Polycarbonates may be waived for certain events. Should such an exception be requested,
the venue shall make a formal request no less than 7 days prior to the given event.

15. The Premises Licence Holder shall install and maintain an ID scanning system subject to the
following:
a) The system shall at all times be live and networked, (ie not simply operating as a stand-alone).
b) Details of every customer entering the venue shall be scanned using the system.
c) Customer details shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days.
d) Copies of customer details shall be made available to officers of the Police or Local Authority
upon request.
e) Subject to the written agreement of the Islington Police Licensing Team, a copy of which will be
kept at the premises and made available for inspection by officers of the police or local authority,
the use of ID Scan may be waived for certain events. Should such an exception be requested, the

Page 79



venue shall make a formal request, with accompanying risk assessment and rationale, no less 
than 10 days prior to the given event.  

16.  An absolute maximum capacity of 150 persons (across both floors) shall apply, as per current Fire 
Risk Assessment. Numbers shall be monitored via a suitable system (ie clickers) to ensure no 
overcrowding. The real time capacity shall be made immediately available to Police or Authorised 
Officers upon request.  

17.  The venue shall operate a designated smoking area to the front of the premises subject to the 
following:  
a) From 9pm until close this area will be demarked and controlled by barrier and monitored by SIA 
and CCTV.  
b) The area will be limited to a maximum capacity of 10 persons. 
c) Any and all patrons employing the smoking area shall be fully searched upon re-entry.  

18.  All staff members engaged in selling alcohol on the premises shall, upon induction and every 12 
months thereafter, receive training pertinent to the Licensing Act. All such training shall be fully 
documented, signed by the employee, and kept at the premises for inspection by Police or other 
authorised officers. Training shall include at a minimum:  
a) The premises age verification policy  
b) Dealing with refusal of sales  
c) Identifying attempts by intoxicated persons to purchase alcohol  
d) Identifying signs of intoxication  

 

Page 80



P
age 81



Page 82



Page 83

Agenda Item B2



• Opening hours, 22:00 until 24:00 Monday to Sunday.  

1.3. Relevant Representations: 

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No - Conditions Agreed 

Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Five resident representations 

Other bodies No:  
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

Page 84



3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being a hotel with public bar facilities and 
function rooms.  
 

3.2 The premises previously held a licence, which allowed a number of licensable activities 
from 08:00 and up until 01:00 Monday to Sunday.  The previous licence is attached at 
Appendix 2. This licence was surrendered in September 2014. 
 

3.3 The application received five letters of representation from local residents.  Upon receipt 
of the representations, the applicant’s legal representative wrote to the residents 
explaining the nature of the premises and informing residents of the conditions the 
applicant had accepted from the responsible authorities.  At the time of writing the 
report, all of the representors still maintained their representation.  

 
3.4 The applicant has accepted conditions requested with the Police and Islington’s Noise 

Service.   
 
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£315.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act Page 85



2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1  The Planning & Development section confirm the property is Grade II statutorily listed,  
 located within the Hat and Feathers Conservation Area (CA26).  The property has   
 planning permission for a C1 hotel, consisting of bedrooms, fitness centre, meeting  
 rooms, restaurant and bar. 

The Planning and Development section further confirm there are no live enforcement   
cases in relation to this property.  

 
 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Application form; 
Appendix 2: Existing Premises Licence 
Appendix 3: Representations; 
Appendix 4: Response to representations 
Appendix 5: Suggested conditions and map of premises location 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 86



Page 87



2 

 

e) the proprietor of an educational 
establishment 

 please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 
 
 
 
ga) 
 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of 
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect 
of an independent hospital in Wales 
 
a person who is registered under Chapter 2 
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (within the meaning of that Part) in an 
independent hospital in England 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
please complete section (B) 
 
 
please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 
England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to 
one box below):     

 

• I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the 
use of the premises for licensable activities; or 

 

• I am making the application pursuant to a   

•     statutory function or  

•     a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 

(A) individual applicants (fill in as applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
 

First name 
 

Date of birth                                    I am 18 years old or over    Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

 

Post town  Postcode  

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

 

E-mail address 
(optional) 

 

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please 
see note 15 for information) 
 
           

 

Page 88



3 

 

 

Second individual applicant (if applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms   
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
 

First names 
 

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old or 
over 

 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

 

Post town  Postcode  

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

 

E-mail address 
(optional) 

 

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please 
see note 15 for information) 
 
 
 

 

 

(B) Other applicants 

 
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where 
appropriate please give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or 
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and 
address of each party concerned. 
 

Name - Omenport Developments Limited  
 

Address 

 
2 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5PQ 

Registered number (where applicable) 
 

     

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association 
etc.) 
   
Limited Company     

Page 89



4 

 

Telephone number (if any)  
 

E-mail address (optional) 
 

 
Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

A  S  A  P          
 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

                
 

 
 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 
 

The premises will operate as a hotel in Islington with public bar facilities and function 
rooms.   

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at 
any one time, please state the number expected to attend. 

      
 

 
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
 
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 
apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) ✓ 

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) ✓ 

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) ✓ 

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or 
(g)  
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

 

Page 90



5 

 

 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)  ✓ 

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) ✓ 

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 

Page 91



6 

 

A 

 

Plays  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of plays at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 92



7 

 

B 

 

Films  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)  
 

Indoors ✓ 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 08:00     23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue 08:00     23:00 

            

Wed 08:00     23:00 State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 08:00     23:00 

            

Fri 08:00     00:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the exhibition of films at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  

            

Sat 08:00     00:00 

            

Sun 08:00     23:00 

            

 

Page 93



8 

 

C 

 

Indoor sporting 
events  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for indoor sporting events at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 94



9 

 

D 

 

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 
entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 95



10 

 

E 

 

Live music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take 
place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors ✓ 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 08:00     23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue 08:00     23:00 

            

Wed 08:00     23:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live 
music (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 08:00     23:00 

            

Fri 08:00     00:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of live music at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  

            

Sat 08:00     00:00 

            

Sun 08:00     23:00 

            

 

Page 96



11 

 

F 

 

Recorded music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take 
place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors ✓ 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 08:00     23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue 08:00     23:00 

            

Wed 08:00     23:00 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded 
music (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 08:00     23:00 

            

Fri 08:00     00:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the playing of recorded music at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  

            

Sat 08:00     00:00 

            

Sun 08:00     23:00 

            

 

Page 97



12 

 

G 

 

Performances of 
dance 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of dance at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 98



13 

 

H 

 

Anything of a similar 
description to that 
falling within (e), (f) 
or (g) 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will 
be providing 
      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors 
or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
                  

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 
guidance note 5) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the entertainment of a similar description to 
that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sun 
            

            

 

Page 99



14 

 

 I 
 

Late night 
refreshment 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the provision of late night 
refreshment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors ✓ 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00     05:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 
4) 
      

- Late night refreshments will only be available to non-
guests on Friday and Saturday from 23:00 until 00:00, 
at all other times Late Night Refreshments will be limited 
to guests residing in the hotel.  

 

            

Tue 23:00     05:00 

            

Wed 23:00     05:00 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 23:00     05:00 

            

Fri 23:00     05:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the provision of late night refreshment at 
different times, to those listed in the column on the left, 
please list (please read guidance note 6) 
 

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.      

            

Sat 23:00     05:00 

            

Sun 23:00     05:00 

            

 

Page 100



15 

 

J 

 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 
consumption – please tick (please read 
guidance note 8)   
 

On the 
premises 

 

Off the 
premises 

 

Day Start Finish Both ✓ 

Mon 00:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol 
(please read guidance note 5) 
   

- The sale by retail of alcohol to non-residents may only 
take place between the following hours Monday to 
Sunday 08.00am till 23.00pm Sunday to Thursday and 
08:00am till 00:00 Friday and Saturday.  

            

Tue 00:00 24:00 

            

Wed 00:00 24:00 

            

Thur 00:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
 

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  

            

Fri 00:00 24:00 

            

Sat 00:00 24:00 

  

Sun 00:00 24:00 

            

 
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the 
licence as designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the 
entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form): 
 

Name  James Olivier 

Date of birth                                     

Address 

 
 
 
 
 

Postcode  

Personal licence number (if known) 
 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 
  

 
 
 

Page 101



16 

 

K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other 
entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to 
concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 9). 
 

NONE 

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon 00:00 24:00 

            

Tue 00:00 24:00 

            

Wed 00:00 24:00 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to 
be open to the public at different times from those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 
6) 
      

- From the end of the permitted hours on New Year’s Eve 
to the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  

Thur 00:00 24:00 

            

Fri 00:00 24:00 

            

Sat 00:00 24:00 

  

Sun 00:00 24:00 

            

 

 

Page 102



17 

 

M  

 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 
10) 

We have considered the impact of the new licence application and in particular note 
that the premises fall within the cumulative impact policy for Bunhill. Steps have been 
taken to ensure that the application and proposed operation will promote the 
licensing objectives without adding to the cumulative impact of the area. This 
includes in particular the addition of conditions in line with your licensing policy.  
 
This premises operates primarily as a hotel with a bar incorporated into the fabric of 
the building (which was formerly a public house known as the Hat and Feathers), as 
per your statement of licensing policy this premises is of mixed use and encourages 
and provides a hub for customers visiting the area during the day, as well as 
encouraging people to stay in the area after work. The hours we have requested are 
within the framework hours and the 24-hour sale is solely for residents staying at the 
premises.  
 
The bar is situated within the premises is on the corner of Clerkenwell Road and 
Goswell Road with the hotel wrapped around it, as can be seen on the plan, this 
provides the pub with good insultation to minimise any noise escape from the 
premises. There is also a bar situated within the main reception area, as well as 
function rooms on the first floor, which are likely to be used on a more occasional 
basis.  
 
The premises will implement the following conditions:  
 

1. An incident and refusals log shall be kept at the premises for at least 12 
months, and made available on request to a Police officer or an authorised of-
ficer of the licensing authority, which will record the following: 

 
(a) All crimes reported to or by the premises to the Police. 
(b) All ejections of patrons 
(c) Any incidents of crime and disorder 
(d) Seizures of drugs, offensive weapons, fraudulent ID or other items 
(e) Any faults with the CCTV system 
(f) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

 

2. A CCTV system shall be installed at the premises. The CCTV system shall be 

maintained in working condition and record the premises when they are con-

ducting licensable activities. Recordings to be retained for a minimum of 28 

days and be made available to the relevant authorities upon request.  

 
3. A ‘Challenge 25 policy shall be adopted, implemented, and maintained ensur-

ing that all members of staff are trained to refuse supply to anyone who ap-

pears to be under the age of 25 and who is seeking to obtain any age re-

stricted product unless that person provides credible photographic proof of 

age evidence. Such credible evidence shall include a photograph of the cus-

tomer and acceptable form of ID. Examples of acceptable ID are limited to 

photo card driving licence, passports, military identification, or proof of age 

cards bearing the 'PASS' hologram. No other evidence of age and identity 

Page 103



18 

 

may be accepted. 

 
4. Challenge 25 posters shall be displayed at the premises.  

 
5. Clear legible notices are to be displayed at all exits from the premises re-

questing patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the 

premises and area quietly. 

 

6. The Premises Licence Holder or nominated person shall ensure that all rele-
vant members of staff receive training in their responsibilities under the Li-
censing Act 2003.  Such training shall be documented, and records made 
available upon request from the Police or an authorised officer of the Licens-
ing Authority. 
 

7. The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of a risk assessment 
carried out by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated person and 
cognisance will be taken of any Police advice.  
 

8. A record of refusals shall be maintained which documents every instance that 
a sale of alcohol (and any other age restricted product) is refused on the 
premises, indicating the date and time the refusal was made, and the member 
of staff making the refusal. The record of refusals shall be available for in-
spection by authorised officers of the licensing authority, officers of the trading 
standards service, and officers of the police. 
 

9. The premises shall ensure that no noise shall emanate from the premises nor 
vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises, which gives 
rise to a nuisance. 
 

10. The sale of alcohol will be from 08:00am until 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 
8am until midnight on Friday and Saturday, except for residents residing with-
in the premises in which case the sale of alcohol is available 24 hours.  
 

11. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff shall be vigilant in re-
lation to litter issues, routinely checking the premises during opening hours to 
ensure they are clean and tidy and to ensure the frontage of the premises is 
clear and tidy.   

 
12. Late night refreshments will only be available to non-guests on Friday and 

Saturday from 23:00 until 00:00, at all other times Late Night Refreshments will 
be limited to guests residing in the hotel.  

 

 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

See box A) above.  

 
c) Public safety 

See box A) above.  

 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

See box A) above.  

Page 104



19 

 

 
e) The protection of children from harm 

See box A) above.  

 
 
Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 
 

 
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

✓ 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises. ✓ 

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities 
and others where applicable. 

✓ 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 
designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 

✓ 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application. ✓ 

 

 
 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application 
will be rejected. 
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is 
not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability 
partnerships] I have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work 
in the United Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online 
right to work checking service (please read note 15). 

 
✓ 
 

 
 

 
     
It is an offence, under Section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003, to make a false statement 
in or in connection with this application. Those who make a false statement may be liable 
on summary conviction to a fine of any amount.   
 
It is an offence under Section 24b of the Immigration Act 1971 for a person to work when 
they know, or have reasonable cause to believe, that they are disqualified from doing so 
by reason of their immigration status. Those who employ an adult without leave or who is 
subject to conditions as to employment will be liable to a civil penalty under section 15 of 
the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality Act 2006 and pursuant to Section 21 of the 
same act, will be committing an offence where they do so in the knowledge, or with 
reasonable cause to believe, that the employee is disqualified.  
 
 
Part 4 – Signatures (please read guidance note 11) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see 
guidance note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what 
capacity.  
 
 

Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I 
understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not 
have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject 
to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the 
carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will 
become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK 
(please read guidance note 15).     
  

Page 105



20 

 

 

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the 
UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from 
doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a 
copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted 
an online right to work check using the Home Office online right 
to work checking service which confirmed their right to work 
(please see note 15)     

Signature 

 

Date 28/12/2023 

Capacity Solicitors for and on behalf of the applicant     

 
For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the 
applicant, please state in what capacity. 
 

Signature  

Date  

Capacity      

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 14) 

Savannah Courtenay 
Flint Bishop LLP 
Pinnacle House 
2 Prospect Place 

 

Post town Derby 
 

Postcode DE24 8HG 

Telephone number (if any)  

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



Page 107



 

\\dellnas05\EandR-FS03$\Public_Protection\Comm\Licences\PREM-LICENSING\C\ClerkenwellRd-2\Surrendered Liucence 
(LN8481)\Licence Archive\LN-8481-020910Licence.doc-JC 
 Page 2 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the exhibition of films: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00   

• The provision of regulated entertainment for indoor sporting events: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00   

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the performance of live music: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00   

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the playing of recorded music: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the performance of dance: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00   

Page 108



 

\\dellnas05\EandR-FS03$\Public_Protection\Comm\Licences\PREM-LICENSING\C\ClerkenwellRd-2\Surrendered Liucence 
(LN8481)\Licence Archive\LN-8481-020910Licence.doc-JC 
 Page 3 

• The provision of entertainment facilities for making music: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00   

• The provision of entertainment facilities for dancing: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00   

• The provision of late night refreshment: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

• The sale by retail of alcohol: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 
08.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 
01.00 

the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  
the following day  

Except on: 
From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve until the end of permitted 
hours on New Years Day 
Non standard timings:  
On a pre-booked private function, the terminal hour for regulated entertainment 
and the provision of entertainment facilities shall be 01.00. 

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



 

\\dellnas05\EandR-FS03$\Public_Protection\Comm\Licences\PREM-LICENSING\C\ClerkenwellRd-2\Surrendered Liucence 
(LN8481)\Licence Archive\LN-8481-020910Licence.doc-JC 
 Page 6 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 
the premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence. 

3. The admission of children to the exhibition of a film shall be restricted in 
accordance with the recommendation of a film classification body as defined in 
the Video Recordings Act 1984 or Islington Council acting as the licensing 
authority where it has given notice in section 20(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
1. The premises shall have a zero tolerance policy for drugs. 
 
2. The premises will refuse service and close the use of the premises to those that are 

drunk, abusive or breach or threaten breaches of any of the licensing objectives. 
 
3. CCTV system shall be maintained at the premises, to include a CCTV unit, which 

monitors the immediate vicinity of the premises.  All cameras shall continually 
record whilst the premises are open to the public and the video recordings shall be 
kept available for a minimum of 31 days with time and date stamping. Tape 
recordings shall be made available to an authorised officer or a police officer with 
24 hours of any request.  

 
4. The manager shall actively participate in and support the local Pubwatch scheme 

and will support the work of Islington Crime, Drugs and Youth Partnership. 
 
5. The premises dispersal policy shall involve staff clearing the premises quickly and 

efficiently and monitoring dispersal so as to minimise disturbance and crime and 
disorder. 

 
6. The premises will offer facilities which do not incite excessive vertical drinking.  This 

will include an extensive food menu, high standard of management, no loud music, 
non alcoholic beverages will always be available.  

 
7. The premises shall raise awareness of safer drinking and travel at night by 

prominently displaying local licence mini cab numbers. 
 
8. Health and Safety and Fire Safety Risk Assessments will be regularly undertaken. 
 
9. Staff will be continually trained in reducing the risk of actions that could result in 

crime and disorder, health and safety and issues surrounding fire safety. 
 
10. Notices will be placed within the premises showing fire precaution and fire 

evacuation procedures. 
 

Page 112



 

\\dellnas05\EandR-FS03$\Public_Protection\Comm\Licences\PREM-LICENSING\C\ClerkenwellRd-2\Surrendered Liucence 
(LN8481)\Licence Archive\LN-8481-020910Licence.doc-JC 
 Page 7 

11. Fire evacuation signage and fire fighting equipment will be provided throughout the 
premises and will be regularly checked and maintained to the satisfaction of the 
London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority. 

 
12. Music will not be audible outside the premises so as not to cause a nuisance to any 

nearby residents. 
 
13. All windows at the premises shall be at least double glazed. 
 
14. The air conditioning flus egress from the roof of the premises shall have sound 

proofing. 
 
15. A full risk assessment will be regularly carried out to seek ways to further reduce 

the potential for Noise Outbreak each year. 
 
16. Children shall be allowed to be present at the premises until 22.00 where a table 

meal is consumed in the licensed area (s).  If a table meal is ordered before 22.00 
but the meal has not been consumed or is still awaited, the child may remain in the 
licensed area(s) until 22.30. 

 
17. Children can also go into the licensed area(s) when passing those areas to get to 

another unlicensed area, or when meals and non alcoholic beverages are available 
for consumption in the licensed area(s). 

 
18. After 22.00 or 22.30, if children are on the premises, they will be supervised in a 

child friendly area (if available) that is not within or that is separate from the licensed 
area. 

 
19. The presence of children in the premises will comply with the Licensing Act 2003.      
 
20. The licensee shall appoint a noise consultant registered with the Institute of 

Acoustics or Association of Noise Consultants to prepare a scheme of sound 
insulation and noise control measures, which may include the installation of a noise 
limiting device, to prevent persons in the neighbourhood from being unreasonably 
disturbed by noise of music, including live music, from the premises.  The scheme 
shall be submitted for approval by the Council, and the approved scheme fully 
implemented to the satisfaction of the Council and the licensee notified in writing 
accordingly, prior to the premises being used for music and dancing. 

 
21. Doors and windows to the premises will be kept closed, so far as practicable, at all 

times when noise generating regulated entertainment is taking place i.e. film 
showing, live and recorded music. 

 
22. No drinks shall be taken outside the premises after 22.00 hours and notices shall be 

displayed on the premises to that effect. 
 
23. The outside seating area shall not be used by members of the public after 22.00 

hours and notices shall be displayed on the premises to that effect. 
 
24. No deliveries to be undertaken between the hours of 11pm till 7am Mon-Sat and 

any time on Sundays or Public Holidays. 
 

Page 113



 

\\dellnas05\EandR-FS03$\Public_Protection\Comm\Licences\PREM-LICENSING\C\ClerkenwellRd-2\Surrendered Liucence 
(LN8481)\Licence Archive\LN-8481-020910Licence.doc-JC 
 Page 8 

25. All amplified music played within the premises shall be subject to the control of an 
entertainment noise control system.  All pre-recorded music played through the in- 
house music system shall be controlled by an automatic electronic noise limiting 
device which restricts the sound system output to below pre-set threshold levels.  
All music from live bands, or DJs utilising their own amplification equipment, shall 
be controlled by a continual music noise level monitoring device which cuts the 
power supply to the sound system if a pre-set threshold is exceeded. 

 
26. The temporary bar in the outside area (during the summer months) is permitted for 

the retail of alcohol and food to customers of the beer garden between 11.30 and 
22.00. 

 
27. Music will only be permitted outside where it is provided in a covered and lined 

marquee with tarpaulin side panels in the beer garden that is privately booked only, 
in compliance with noise levels assessed and set by the London Borough of 
Islington Noise Team Officers between 11.30 and 22.00. 

 
28. The outside area will be managed so as to avoid or minimise noise or nuisance to 

local residents at all times. 
 
29. The licensee shall ensure that at all times that this licence is in operation all 

amplified sound and music played on the premises is subject to the control of an 
entertainment noise control system.  The system must be set to maximum music 
noise levels approved by, and in conjunction with, the Council's Noise Team.  

 
30. If there are any changes in the distribution and type of loudspeakers or amplification 

equipment serving the sound system, then the noise control system shall be re-
calibrated to ensure the music levels given above are not exceeded.  The 
calibration certificate shall be forwarded to the Licensing team. 

 
31. The entertainment noise control system shall be monitored, checked and  calibrated 

as necessary, so that the approved levels set by the Council, are not exceeded.  
 
32. If satisfactory sound levels cannot be achieved, recorded music should not be 

played in the Beer Garden. 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

Annex 4 – Plans 
Reference Number: 230212 30B  Dated: 28.02.05 &  
Reference Number: 230426 401  Dated: 03/05/07  
 

Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



 
From: Savannah Courtenay   
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 4:03 PM 
To: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk>; Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Premises Licence Application: Hotel Indigo, 2 Clerkenwell Rd, EC1.  
 
[External]  
Hi Carol,  
 
Please could you pass the following on the residents for me: 
 
Dear Resident,  
 
We thank you for raising your concerns and have thoroughly reviewed your representation in respect 
of our new licence application.  
 
As you are aware, due to the representations that have been placed, this application will now need to 
be heard in front of a licensing sub-committee for determination. As you can imagine, we want to try 
and attempt to come to an agreement prior to it going this far to prevent any further costs or time.  
 
Just to provide you with some background, the premises is main function and running is as a hotel 
with a bar/restaurant facility being incorporated into the fabric of the building. The times we have 
requested are within the council’s core licensing hours and we are not requesting to go into the late 
hours of the night.  
 
As part of our application, we consulted with both of the main responsible authorities Environmental 
Health and Police, we agreed additional conditions with them, and no further objection was raised by 
them. I have attached our amended conditions for you to review as well.  
 
There have been issues raised in relation to late night refreshments, music and drinking beyond the 
permitted hours; we would like to reassure you that as per our application and the condition we have 
stipulated any additional hours are for residents only, which is completely standard and normal for 
any hotel service especially due to the mini bars within the rooms and the room service availability.  
 
In part of the representations, it has also alluded to our application and the premises being in direct 
conflict with the council’s licensing objectives and policy, which is completely inaccurate. The 
application itself is well within the council’s licensing policy and we would put you to pages 21-22 of 
their policy. Licensing Policy 2023-2027 (islington.gov.uk) 
 
Additionally, Islington Council have noted that they are dedicated to maintaining the historic features 
of the local area. They specifically include the Hat & Feathers (which was the name of the fully 
operational pub that was previously in this location) being a fully operational pub as part of the 
council’s commitment to preserving key features of Islington’s past. The premises has been in situ for 
over 200 years old and the redevelopment work that is being conducted is only going to enhance the 
aesthetics of the overall area, preserve a historic pub and allow for better noise mitigating measures 
to be placed.  
 
We strongly believe that the additional measures we have agreed, which both the top leading 
authorities in these areas are on board with, will mitigate any concerns raised and the premises will 
integrate seamlessly into the fabric of the local area.  
 

Page 120



Page 121



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule     Appendix 5 

 
1. Clear legible notices are to be displayed at all exits from the premises re-questing patrons to 

respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.  
 

2. The Premises Licence Holder or nominated person shall ensure that all relevant members of staff 
receive training in their responsibilities under the Li-censing Act 2003. Such training shall be 
documented, and records made available upon request from the Police or an authorised officer of 
the Licensing Authority.  

 
3. A record of refusals shall be maintained which documents every instance that a sale of alcohol 

(and any other age restricted product) is refused on the premises, indicating the date and time the 
refusal was made, and the member of staff making the refusal. The record of refusals shall be 
available for in-spection by authorised officers of the licensing authority, officers of the trading 
standards service, and officers of the police.  

 
4. The premises shall ensure that no noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be 

transmitted through the structure of the premises, which gives rise to a nuisance.  
 
5. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that all staff shall be vigilant in re-lation to litter issues, 

routinely checking the premises during opening hours to ensure they are clean and tidy and to 
ensure the frontage of the premises is clear and tidy.  

 
Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Service – Agreed 

1. Doors and windows to the premises will be kept closed, so far as practicable, at all times when noise 
generating regulated entertainment is taking place i.e., live, and recorded music.  
 

2. The licensee shall develop a Noise Management and Dispersal Policy to control noise coming from 
the venue, including people noise, and to control noise from customers either congregating outside 
or leaving the area. The Noise Management and Dispersal Policy shall be agreed with the Council’s 
Licensing Authority reviewed following any noise related incidences to ensure that public nuisance 
is prevented from recurring, if any updates are made to the policy a copy of the updated document 
shall be served on the Environmental Health and Licensing Office.  

 
3. There shall be a maximum limit of 30 patrons/visitors congregating outside of the venue at any one 

time, excluding any pavement café areas.  
 
4. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall 

not cause a nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. Any filters, ducting and extract 
fan shall be cleaned and serviced regularly.  

 
5. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee shall 

take all reasonable steps to work with the responsible authority to agree appropriate measures, if 
necessary.  

 
6. Waste collections and the delivery of licensable goods to the venue shall be restricted to the hours 

between 07:00 and 20:00 Monday-Saturday. No waste collections or deliveries shall be made on a 
Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

 
7. A contact number shall be made available with the premises for customers for taxi/cab services.  
 
8. Bottling out from the premises is prohibited between 23:00 hours and 07:00 hours. 

 
 

 
Page 122



9. Any outside frontage used as a smoking area shall be swept and cleared of any smoking litter daily. 
Ashtrays or suitable containers/receptacles shall be provided for smokers. 
 

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police- Agreed  

1. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained at all times that the premises is open for 
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria.  
 
a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system 

is working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these checks, showing 
the date and time of the person checking, shall be kept, and made available to police or 
authorised council officers on request. 

b) The police must be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of 
business for any reason.  

c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full-length 
image of anyone entering.   

d) The system will provide coverage of any exterior part of the premises accessible to the public.   
e) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped.  
f) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided 

free of charge to police or authorised council officers on request, (subject to the Data Protection 
Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request. 

2.  Clear and permanent signage shall be prominently displayed at the entrance to the premises 
highlighting:  
a) CCTV in operation.  
b) Challenge 25 Proof of Age Scheme in operation.  
c) Residential Area: Please be respectful of our neighbours and leave quietly.  
d) [Current business contact telephone number for venue management].  

 
3.  An incident log shall be maintained at the premises and made available to the Police or any 

authorised officer upon request. All entries will include time/date/name of person making entry. 
Said log will record the following.  
a) all crimes reported to the venue  
b) all ejections of patrons  
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
d) any incidents of disorder either in or directly outside the venue  
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
f) any faults in the CCTV system  
g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
h) any refusal of alcohol sales  

4. In the event that any assault or serious crime is (or appears to have been), committed on the 
premises, the management will immediately ensure that.  
a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without delay.  
b) All safe and practicable steps are taken to apprehend any suspects pending the arrival of the 
police.  
c) The crime scene is preserved so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by 
the police.  

5.  There shall be at least 1 personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when open 
for licensable activities.  

6. A comprehensive and fully equipped first aid box will be available at the premises at all times. At 
least 1 member of staff shall be FAW/FREC trained and aware of the first aid box location.  Page 123



7. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme. The only forms of acceptable 
identification shall be:  
a) Valid and in-date photographic driving licence.  
b) Valid and in-date passport.  
c) Current Military/UK Services Photo ID.  
d) Valid and in-date PASS Hologram ID Card.  

 
8. The licensee shall train and instruct the management and staff to prevent the admission of, and 

ensure the immediate and orderly departure of:  
a) any and all persons who appear to be drunk and/or disorderly  
b) any and all persons displaying signs of other substance abuse.  
c) safe for any guests residing within the premises, in this instance, staff will ensure that they are 
escorted to their room.  

9.  The need for door supervisors shall be assessed by way of a risk assessment carried out by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated person. Cognisance will be taken of any Police 
advice.  

10. The sale of alcohol to Non-Residents shall only be from 8am - 11pm Sunday to Thursday and 8am 
-midnight on Friday and Saturday.  Beyond these times alcohol sales shall be limited to guests 
residing in the hotel.  

11. Late night refreshment shall only be available to non-residents on Friday and Saturday from 11pm 
– midnight. Beyond these times late-night refreshment shall be limited to guests residing in the 
hotel. 

12. Non-intoxicating beverages shall be available to patrons at all times where alcohol is sold, and 
potable tap water shall be provided free of charge upon request.  

13. Any patrons drinking outside the premises must be within the designated area.  
 
 

Page 124



P
age 125



P
age 126



P
age 127



P
age 128



P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 131

Agenda Item B3



Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No - Conditions Agreed 

Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Three resident representations 

Other bodies No:  
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

2.2. This premises is located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The application form addresses the Cumulative Impact Area and Policy by 
suggesting a number of conditions in the Operating Schedule.  The applicants 
further endorse these conditions by accepting conditions suggested by the Police 
and Islington Council’s Noise Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 3); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

3.1 The application describes the premises as being exclusively for the benefit of his select 
network group, the bar will be a gathering place for his Ukrainian community, mainly Page 132



the university students that Dr Rashad Muradov assists in London. However, when 
speaking to the Police, the applicants legal representative, confirmed the premises was 
open to the public. I have tried to reach the applicants legal representative ahead of 
writing this report, however, have not been able to speak to them about this matter.   
 

3.2 The premises previously held a licence, which allowed the ‘On’ sale of alcohol from 
10:00 until 23:00 Monday to Sunday.  This licence lapsed in November 2022, due to the 
company who held the premises licence, went into insolvency.   
 

3.3 The application received three letters of representation from local residents.    
 

3.4 The applicant has accepted conditions requested with the Police and Islington’s Noise 
Service.   

 
 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£190.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. Page 133



4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1 The Planning & Development section confirm the property is not a listed building and is in      
           St Lukes Conservation area. 

Planning History  

P2013/0618/FULPart change of use of A1 to Wine Bar A4.  

HOURS OF OPERATION: The basement floor A4 unit hereby approved shall not operate 
outside the hours of: 10am and 11pm on any day. 

REASON:  To ensure that the proposed development does not have an adverse impact 
on neighbouring residential amenity in accordance with policies: D3 and Env17 of the 
Islington Unitary Development Plan 2002 and policy CS12F of the Islington Core Strategy 
2011. 

Enforcement  

There are no outstanding planning enforcement investigations in relation to this site. 
 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Application form; 
Appendix 2: Previous Licence; 
Appendix 3: Representations; 
Appendix 4: Suggested conditions and map of premises location 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 20 January 2024 06:11
To: Burrell, Ryan
Subject: Re: Rush Members Club WK 230038874

[External]  

Good morning Ryan   

My details are below. 

  

 

Thanks 

On Fri, 19 Jan 2024 at 17:25, Burrell, Ryan <Ryan.Burrell@islington.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear  

Thank you for your email, for us to accept your representation we will need your home address. 

Ryan Burrell 

Licensing Support Officer 

Licensing 

Community Safety, Resilience and Security 

Islington Council 

222 Upper Street, N1 1XR 

Direct Tel: 020 7527 4330 

Licensing Duty Line: 020 7527 3031 or email licensing@islington.gov.uk 

Follow us on Twitter @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife  

Like us on Facebook @IslingtonBC and @IslingtonLife 

Follow IslingtonLife on Instagram @IslingtonLife 

Rep 1

Page 153



2

The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the 
confidentiality of this E-Mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed. It is intended solely for the 
addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any 
action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. 

From:    
Sent: 09 January 2024 08:46 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: Rush Members Club WK 230038874 

[External]  

To whom it may concern,  

I wish to object to the new licence being granted to the above club.  

As I am sure you are aware Bunhill is a cumulative impact area. We have had a lot of anti‐social behaviour, street 
drinking and pre and post loading of members of the public to and from Shoreditch and local establishments. 

The nature of this licence is that customers will be arriving and leaving in the early hours. 

In terms of antisocial behavior, particularly late at night, we have a 
constant procession in the street of people leaving local licensed 
premises causing significant noise disturbance, leaving litter and in 
In some cases urinating and fighting. 

The  problems in the street are caused late at night and are due to the hours of 
opening of local premises with legacy licences which local residents find impossible to challenge or change. 

 There are now several premises which will form a hub of late night activity ( Naar Kebab shop now with 3am 
licence, Lodos 24 hour off licence and the open all hours St Lukes Church yard a perfect place for drunk people to 
spend some time eating and drinking  before going home.  

ASB has been reported to Islington Council and the police for over two years and still the churchyard remains open. 
All these premises are within a  few meters of each other. 

Page 154



3

This ruins the lives of local residents who are bothered by these customers particularly during the warmer months. 

The free availability of alcohol at late night clearly encourages this. The addition of these premises will only make 
matters worse.  

The prevention of public nuisance. 
I have already described the type of public nuisance in terms of noise 
and behavior we regularly have particularly on Friday and Saturday 
nights up to and beyond midnight. How families with children in, for 
example, Coltash Court can get them to sleep before midnight or 
later on any nights in the week except Sunday I do not know. 
Granting a licence to premises into an early morning opening venue, particularly Friday and Saturdays cannot fail to 
magnify this problem. It will just add to the problems by drawing in customers who have to leave the pubs and 
clubs. 

Public safety ‐ protection of children from harm 
The public safety considerations are self‐evident from the situation 
late in the evenings that I have described. This is an area already 
saturated with licensed premises supplying, adding the availability of food would just mean them hanging around 
longer and throwing the rubbish from the food everywhere. 

Children may very well be harmed by the remnants of the drug taking and the broken glass strewn everywhere. 

In summary Bunhill Ward has a policy with a presumption not to allow any more late night licenced premises for a 
reason.  We are unable to resolve the street drinking and anti‐social behaviour in St Lukes Churchyard currently. 
The addition of another late light licenced venue can only make this worse. 

We do not need or want this establishment in our area.  

Regards 

 

This e‐mail is intended for the addressee only. If you have received it in error, please contact the sender and delete 
the material from your computer. Please be aware that information in this email may be confidential, legally 
privileged and/or copyright protected.  

Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule     Appendix 4 

1. All staff who work at the till will be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training 
every six months. 

 
2. Written training records will be kept for each staff member and be produced to police & authorized 

council officers on request. Training will include identifying persons under 25, making a challenge, 
acceptable proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & responsible 
alcohol retailing. 

 
3. An incident book shall be kept at the premises, and made available to the police or authorized 

council officers, which will record the following: 
A) All crimes reported, 
B) Lost property, 
C) All ejections of customers, 
D) Any complaints received, 
E) Any incidents of disorder, 
F) Any seizure of drugs or offensive weapons, 
G) Any faults in the cctv, 
H) Any refusal in the sale of alcohol. 
I) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

4. Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale (as appropriate) 
advising customers: 
A) That cctv & challenge 25 are in operation; 
B) Advising customers of the provisions of the licensing act regarding underage & proxy sales; 
C) Of the permitted hours for licensable activities & the opening times of the premises; 

       D) To respect residents, leave quietly, not to loiter outside the premises or in the vicinity and to 
dispose of litter legally. 

 
Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Service – Agreed 

1. Noise, vibration, or odours shall not emanate from the premises to cause a nuisance to nearby 
properties. 

 
2. In the event of a noise/odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the 

licensee shall take appropriate measures within a time frame set by and agreed with the Council 
Officers to prevent any further recurrence of that nuisance. This may include, upon the direction of 
the Licensing Authority, the appointment of an acoustic consultant accredited by 
the Institute of Acoustics or the Association of Noise Consultants to carry out a noise assessment 
of the venue and prepare a scheme of sound insulation and/or control measures to prevent local 
residents being unreasonably disturbed by noise coming from the premises, including amplified 
sound, mechanical noise or a gathering of patrons outside the venue. The scheme shall be 
submitted for approval by the Council, and the approved scheme fully implemented to the 
satisfaction of the Council and the licensee notified in writing accordingly, 
prior to the premises playing amplified sound. 

3. Waste collections and the delivery of licensable goods to the venue shall be restricted to the hours 
between 08:00 and 23:00 Monday-Saturday. No waste collections or deliveries shall be made on a 
Sunday or Bank Holiday. 
 

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police- Agreed  

1. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, 
the management will immediately ensure that: 
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately; Page 158



(b) As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any 
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police; 
(c) As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any 
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police; 
(d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons present on 
the premises at all times during operating hours. 

2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an 
authorised officer, which will record: 
(a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue 
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party 
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons 
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

3. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open 
for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria: 
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system 
is working properly and that the date and time are correct. 
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and 
made available to the police or other authorised officer on request; 
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of 
business for any reason; 
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 
image of anyone entering; 
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 
premises accessible to the public; 
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
(g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the premises who 
can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on 
request. 
(h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free 
of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 
2018) within 24 hours of any request. 
(i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the 
premises. 
(j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners Office 
[ICO]. 

4. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme; 
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 
(b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification , such as passport or 
UK driving licence , or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards , will be accepted. A 
screenshot or digital document copy will not be sufficient. 

Page 159



5. The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 
security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police. 

6. The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and cognisance will be 
taken of any police advice. 

7. The licence holder will ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions 
of the premises licence, age restricted products and [if they are ever left in charge of the premises] 
the operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers.  The 
licensee shall keep written records of training and instructions given to each member of staff, 
detailing the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives, identifying persons under 25, 
making a challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding 
conflict & responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and 
understood the training.  All staff who work at the till will be trained for their role on induction and 
be given refresher training every six months.  The written training records kept for each staff 
member will be produced to police & authorised council officers on request.  

8. There will no externally promoted events.  The premises licence holder shall not permit third party 
hire of the premises for externally managed and promoted events . Functions and events at the 
premise shall always be managed by the premises licence holder and their staff at all times . 

9. The premises to operate a zero-tolerance policy to illegal drugs. 

10. There shall be a Personal licence holder on the premises throughout the time that licensable 
activity is taking place. 

11. No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of any drinking vessel or 
open glass bottle, whether empty or containing any beverage. This includes persons temporarily 
leaving the premises to smoke.  

12. There shall be no vertical drinking at any time. 

Page 160



P
age 161



P
age 162


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5RN - New Premise Licence
	ADP5C01.tmp
	Subject:
	PREMISES LICENCE  APPLICATION
	Re: Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London EC1M 5RN
	1. Synopsis
	2. Recommendations
	3. Background
	4. Implications
	5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations


	ADPD2C6.tmp
	Subject:
	PREMISES LICENCE  APPLICATION
	Re: Drip, 27 Clerkenwell Road, London EC1M 5RN
	1. Synopsis
	2. Recommendations
	3. Background
	4. Implications
	5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations



	B2 Hotel Indigo, 2 Clerkenwell Road, London, EC1M 5PQ - New Premise Licence
	B3 Rush Cocktails, Basement, 100 Old Street, London, EC1V 9AY



